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Chairman’s Statement

BV 8

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Crown International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), this is my first annual
report since I have chaired the Board, I would like to take the opportunity
to pay tribute to the members of the Group’s management in the past
years. I hereby present the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2015
(“FY2015”).

BUSINESS REVIEW — SEEKING CHANGE
WHILE PRESERVING STABILITY

During the current financial year (the “Year”), the Company successfully
introduced a new controlling sharcholder, Crown Landmark Corporation
(“CLC” or “Crown Group”), expanded the shareholding structure and
secured new financing and new development projects. These moves have
provided new impetus for the Group’s operations and financial position
and have laid a healthier and stronger groundwork for the Group’s
development, thus gearing up the Group for the rapidly-changing economic
environment of and the market opportunities arisen in the Greater China
region. Following several years of business restructuring, the Group has
gotten out of the difficult conditions. As the new management brings in
new ideas, the Group has strengthened the existing operation strategies
from various aspects. For instance, the Group restructured and improved
its asset portfolio based on a management philosophy which focuses on
the internal review and careful assessment of the external environment by
allocating resources appropriately and phasing out non-performing assets,
with an effort to maintain its strength. The Group is actively seeking other
restructuring alternatives for sustaining the operations of its business lines

under unfavourable conditions.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

As part of the asset portfolio restructuring, the Group had, during the
Year, completed the disposal of some of its Chinese hotel assets which
were non-performing in the past few years. As a result, no hotel rental
income was recorded for the Year (year ended 31 March 2014 (“FY2014”):
approximately HK$896,000).

The Group’s commercial building located in Yingkou, Liaoning Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) contributed a rental income
of approximately HK$3.6 million during the Year (FY2014: approximately
HKS$5 million). Due to the disposal of the Group’s property located in
Wuhan, Hubei Province during the Year, there was a decrease in rental

income.
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During the Year, the Group recorded other operating income of
approximately HK$138 million due to the waiver of part of the outstanding
borrowings by the former substantial shareholder. Together with the
exceptional gain on disposal or deregistration of subsidiaries for the purpose
of business restructuring during the Year, the financial performance of the

Group for the Year showed a significant improvement.

In addition, the management of the Group (the “Management”) generated
additional funds for the repayment of borrowings by ways of new
share issue, debt financing and asset disposal, which has broadened the
shareholders’ base of the Group and considerably improved the Group’s debt

ratio.

PROSPECTS

The assets portfolio restructuring of the Group had been mostly completed
as at 31 March 2015 whereas the Group has already turned its business
around and is now ready for new investment opportunities with good
potentials. The Management intends to continue the prevailing overall scope
of business of the Group (i.c. including hotel investment, hotel operations

and property investment) in the coming future.

During the Year, the Management had been proactively secking potential
investment opportunities by conducting a review of the real estate market
development including hotel and property investments, not limited to
regions in the Greater China, Southeast Asia and the western countries.
The Management is of the view that there are greater potential investment
opportunities for real estate market development in the aforesaid regions
as compared to that of other countries worldwide and therefore would
like to continually seek suitable investment opportunities for real estate
development including hotel and property investments in those regions. The
Management believes that this should help creating greater value for the
Group and generate better return to the sharcholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) in the future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend our utmost gratitude to
our valued clients, shareholders and business associates for their continued
support for and confidence in the Group. I also wish to express our sincere
appreciation to our management and employees for their positive efforts

over the past year.

Mr. MENG Jin Long

Chairman

Hong Kong: 30 June 2015
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Directors’ Commentaries

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Turnover

The Group recorded a turnover for the year ended 31 March 2015 in the
amount of HK$3.6 million (FY2014: HK$6.0 million). Such turnover only
comprised of rental income. For the previous financial year, rental income,
hotel rental income and food & beverage revenue were HK$5.1 million,
HKS$0.8 million and HK$0.1 million respectively. No income was recorded
in hotel rental segment and food & beverage segment as the Group were
under portfolio restructuring to its hotel assets during the Year. As of 31
March 2015 the Group did not hold any hotels in its asset portfolio but is

now identifying new investment opportunities in the hotel business.

Staff Costs
Staff costs decreased from HK$10.4 million in FY2014 to HK$8.0 million

during the Year due to cost control measures undertaken by the management
coupled with a decrease in operating activities in line with the Group’s

restructuring of asset portfolio.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses which were of recurring nature comprised mainly
office rentals, and other corporate expenses related to on-going corporate
activities. Other operating expenses had increased significantly from
HK$26.7 million in FY2014 to HK$88.5 million the Year mainly due to the
HK$62.2 million provision for other receivables and the increase in legal,
professional and advisory fees as a result of various corporate activities taken

place during the Year.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased from HK$44.7 million in FY2014 to HK$2.6

million mainly due to full repayment of a loan during the Year.

Profit attributable to equity holders

For FY2015, the Group recorded a net profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$155.1 million (FY2014: net loss of HK$45.3
million). Total comprehensive profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company was HK$120.3 million (FY2014: total comprehensive
loss of HK$48.3 million). Such significant increase in profit was mainly
attributable to the waiver of partial amount due to VXLCPL, the former
ultimate holding company of the Group and the gain on disposal of

subsidiaries recognized during the Year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of hotel investment and

operations and property investment.

The Group had been loss-making continuously since financial year 2008. In
the most recent two consecutive years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March
2014, the Group recorded net loss after tax of approximately HK$72.5
million and HK$40.8 million respectively. In view of the unsatisfactory
financial performance of the Group, the Management had continued to
review its existing businesses from time to time and strived to improve the

business operation and financial position of the Group.

It had been the business strategy of the Group to proactively seek potential
investment opportunities that could enhance its value to the Sharcholders.
The Directors considered that it was beneficial for the Group to seek
suitable investment opportunities from time to time to diversify its existing

investment portfolio and to broaden its source of income.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Save as any adverse change to the hotel and property investment
environment worldwide and the political risks exposed to any investment
in HK and the Greater China area which together would be regarded as
principal risks, other risk issues had been evaluated by the Company as set
out in Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this

report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with

any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.

Environmental policies and performance

During FY2015, the Management had taken two subject areas into the
Group’s daily operations, namely, operating practices and community
involvement. Within these two subject areas, the Company had put all those
relevant environmental factors into its consideration from time to time.
For operating practices, the Group had established employment policies
and had offered reasonable working environment for its employees that
are in compliant with the respective local rules and regulations. Besides,
the hotel and property projects of the Group persistently adopted the
most stringent quality requirement for the utmost interests of the local
community. Regarding community involvement, the Group’s work teams in
various cities had been very much ready for every opportunity to involve in
community events and activities. Conclusively, the Group would continue

such directives in the year to come.
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Directors’ Commentaries (Conti

= F il ()

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 17 October 2013, “U” Inns & Hotels Investment Limited (“UIHIL”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Mr. Mou Xiaogang, an independent third party, to dispose
of the entire equity interests in R %A% (BAL) I 55 & PLA R A #H
(“U Inns Tonghua”) for a consideration of RMB19.0 million (equivalent
approximately to HK$23.9 million) (the “First Disposal”). The First
Disposal was completed in May 2014 and U Inns Tonghua ceased to be a

member of the Group.

On 19 December 2013, UIHIL entered into an equity transfer agreement
with Mr. Niu Ling Feng, an independent third party, to dispose of the
entire equity interests in PRE ke (BB 54 A AW (‘U Inns
Wuhan”) for a consideration of RMB14.1 million (equivalent approximately
to HK$18.0 million) (the “Second Disposal”). The Second Disposal was
completed in May 2014 and U Inns Wuhan ceased to be a member of the
Group.

On 22 January 2014, UIHIL entered into an equity transfer agreement
with Mr. Liu Xiong, an independent third party, to dispose of the entire
equity interests in PRAYZ AR (FF R L) W5 & PA AR (“U Inns
Jinggangshan”) for a consideration of RMB50.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$62.2 million) (the “Third Disposal”). The Third
Disposal was completed in September 2014 and U Inns Jinggangshan ceased

to be a member of the Group.

On 4 July 2013, the Company, UIHIL and Fortune Sea Group Limited
(“FSG”), entered into an asset swap agreement (the “Asset Swap
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to
acquire, and FSG conditionally agreed to dispose of, 25.9% equity interest
in “U” Inns and Hotels Holdings Limited (“UIHHL”), a 74.1%-owned
subsidiary of the Company prior to the completion of the Asset Swap
Agreement (the “Asset Swap”). The consideration payable under the Asset
Swap was to be satisfied by way of transfer of the 100% equity interest in
REEE(WE)BEEEHERAT (“U Inns Xi’an”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of UIHIL as at the date of the Asset Swap Agreement) from
UIHIL to FSG. As at the date of the Asset Swap Agreement, FSG was a
substantial shareholder of UIHHL, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Asset Swap was completed on 18 April 2014 where UIHHL
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and U Inns Xi’an ceased

to be a member of the Group.
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On 30 March 2015, Crown Entertainment Corporation, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement with
Million Creation Technology Limited (“MCTL”), an independent third
party, to dispose of the entire equity interests in Harvest Kindom Limited

for a consideration of HK$125.0 million.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 2 July 2014, the Company acquired a 100% wholly-owned subsidiary,
Harvest Kindom Limited from a related party at a consideration of
US$120,000, which in turn held the entire equity of two subsidiaries
including COD Corporation Limited which is incorporated in Hong Kong,

and R FE () H 2 which is incorporated in the PRC.

On 31 October 2014, the Group through Crown International Resort
Limited (as purchaser, “Crown Resort”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement
(the “SP Agreement”) with Sino Oasis Oversea Limited (as vendor, “Sino
Oasis”). Pursuant to the SP Agreement, Crown Resort agreed to acquire
and Sino Oasis agreed to sell the entire equity interest in H LLj 7 2 J
HEMBAM AT (“Target Company”) which owns a residential and
commercial complex (the “Property”) located at No. 69, Zhongshan
Third Road, Eastern District, Zhongshan City, which comprises 2 blocks
of 28-storey residential buildings built over a 4-level retail podium and a
2-level basement, erected on a parcel of land with a registered site area of
approximately 10,533 square meters (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition
was completed in June 2015. The Group will settle the remaining
consideration of HK$612,200,000 in respect of the Acquisition in

accordance with the terms of the SP Agreement.

The Directors were of the opinion that the Acquisition would provide
promising prospects for the Group as the Property is located in Zhongshan,
one of the major business hubs in southern China. With the well-developed
traffic network and infrastructure, the rental of commercial and residential
space in Zhongshan City has been growing continuously. Please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 7 November 2014, 31 December 2014,
22 January 2015, 31 March 2015 and 29 May 2015 and circular dated
3 February 2015 for details of the Acquisition.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Cash flows

The Group maintained total cash and cash equivalents of approximately

HK$34.6 million as of 31 March 2015.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has received a total sum of
HK$125.0 million from MCTL on the completion of the disposals of a

group of subsidiaries.

Borrowings and gearing

As of 31 March 2014, the Group had an amount due to VXLCPL totaling
approximately HK$407.4 million due within one year and was fully repaid
on 3 October 2014.

The Company had early redeemed the promissory notes held by Crown
Landmark Corporation, the ultimate holding company of the Company,
with principal amount of HK$120 million and the accrued interests of
HKS$1.2 million on 30 October 2014. The Board considered that such early
redemption could improve the gearing ratio of the Company and reduce the

interest burden to the Group.

On 10 March 2015, the Company issued the promissory notes with
principal amount of HK$500.0 million to Rich Bay Global Limited
(“Rich Bay”) pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 10 March 2015
(as supplemented by a supplemental deed dated 22 April 2015) entered
into between the Company and Rich Bay. Pursuant to the agreement (as
supplemented by a supplemental deed), the Company agreed to issue, and
Rich Bay agreed to subscribe for promissory notes due within three years
from the date of issue (being 10 March 2015) with principal amount of
HK$500.0 million. Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 10
March 2015 and 22 April 2015 for details.

The Group’s gearing ratio is measured on the basis of the Group’s total
interest-bearing debts net of cash reserves over the total equity. As of 31
March 2015, the gearing ratio is 60.8% (gearing ratio in FY2014: deficit
equity).

10 Crown International Corporation Limited Annual Report 2014/2015

B E - M E R E AR
2

BEwmsE

REER B —HEZH=Z1T—HZBHER
B 4 - ) SR 4) %5 34,600,000 G

TSR AR H A% - A AR [ B0 B B A R R AR
125,000,0003 JG > 15 2% 56 B B 2 5% P ) 2
] Z Wik IE o

i sk B B A R RHIR DL

MoB—WEZH=1+—H  REEG RN
VXLCPL#K JE & 3£ #1407,400,0009 7 » i —
ERBW - REOR 2 NETHZEE
W -

ARAF P ZFE—NET A =1 H RS E N
L5 M AR A R A W] (AR ] 2 e A I
A F]) B R A A 48 120,000,0009 76 Z &
SO SRR R R S 01,200,000 88 0T © 5 € 2
H o 4R LI o] 7 B SR R AT R E AR A H] 2 AR
415 bl R R U AR AR T R B A o

BB AR A ] B Rich Bay Global Limited
(IRich Bay ) Frsl s H#I 4 R — L=
HHHZREWH®&R (KA T — 14
WHZ+ZHZHRZBHI) » AR F R
R —HAEZH T H M Rich Bay A7 A4
#5500,000,00095 7 Z 7% 5657 95 o M4 3% ok
(RHHFE BT ) - A2 W] 7] 7 B 47 1M Rich
Bay [l 7 5 i A 42 4 %5 500,000,000 95 7C ~ 74
BAEM (MR- HE=H+H)BHH=
ENB 2 RS EE S 2 AR AR H
WA _R—HFE=ATHR_F—HENA
“tZHZ A

ACHR B 2 AR bl R A AR [ B BB A
W2 B4 i 2 22 B DA B 2 AR & o
RER-HEZA=Z1T—H EARAFEE
#560.8% ( . — P4 I B4R B 2 B AR
Vo c B AR A Al o



As at 31 March 2015, the total borrowings of the Group were payable as

follows:

Directors’ Commentaries (Continued)
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After 5 years B4 = -

Issue of new Shares

On 19 June 2014, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
Changjiang Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited (the “Placing Agent”),
pursuant to which the Placing Agent conditionally agreed to place up
to 300,000,000 shares in the Company (the “Shares”) to the placees at
the placing price of HK$0.36 (the “lst Placing”). The 1st Placing was
completed with the net proceeds of HK$107.4 million on 2 July 2014.

On 21 October 2014, the Company entered into another placing agreement
with the Placing Agent, pursuant to which the Placing Agent conditionally
agreed to place up to 330,399,800 Shares to the placees at the placing price
of HK$0.7 (the “2nd Placing”). The 2nd Placing was completed with the
net proceeds of HK$230.3 million on 29 October 2014.

The net proceeds from the 1st Placing and the 2nd Placing were applied as

general working capital of the Group as originally announced.

In relation to the settlement of part of the consideration in respect of the

Acquisition, the Company issued 440,000,000 Shares in February 2015.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure of the Group for FY2015 included expenditure on fixed
assets of approximately HK$10.27 million (FY2014: approximately HK$1.9
million). Major expenditure included the completion of certain construction

in progress and the acquisition of motor vehicles.
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Directors’ Commentaries (C
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any material contingent

liabilities or guarantees.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$11.6 million (FY2014: approximately HK$1.9 million).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had capital commitment of approximately
HKS$0.6 million (FY2014: approximately HK$0.8 million).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 March 2015
(FY2014: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Please refer to the section headed “Business Review” above for details of the

material acquisition and disposal during FY2015.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not hold any significant investments.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total of 27 employees (FY2014:
45 employees) approximately, including Executive Directors. The Group’s
remuneration policy and packages for the Executive Directors and Senior
Management are determined by the Remuneration, Quality and Nomination
Committee (“RQNC”) while those for other employees are reviewed
and approved by the Group Chief Executive Officer (“Group CEQ”).
The Group remunerates its employees based on industry practice and
the performance of each individual. The Group also offers discretionary
bonuses, medical insurance and defined contribution retirement plans, and

provides a share option scheme for its employees and Executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. MENG Jin Long (“Mr. Meng”), Chairman of the Board, Group
Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the Executive Committee, Member
of the RQNC and China President

Aged 32, Mr. Meng was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 27
May 2014. He was re-designated as an Executive Director and appointed
as members of each of the Executive Committee and the RQNC and also
China President on 19 September 2014. Mr. Meng was further appointed
as the Chairman of the Board, the Group CEO and the Chairman of the

Executive Committee on 31 March 2015.

Mr. Meng joined the Crown Group in May 2012. He obtained his
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from Jing Qiao University in

China.

Before joining the Crown Group, Mr. Meng was a sales manager at a real
estate investment company in Beijing. He assisted in land and property
development, shopping mall leasing and management and managed selling

and leasing several real estate projects.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Hong Shen (“Mr. Liu”), Vice Chairman of the Board

Aged 56, Mr. Liu was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 27 May
2014. He was also appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Board on 2 July
2014.

Mr. Liu is currently the Director of Ever Apex Group Limited. He obtained

his bachelor’s degree in Chinese Literature from Yunnan University in China

As an entrepreneur, Mr. Liu has many years of experience in commerce,
especially in real estate development in both residential and commercial
properties. He and his business partners have invested in and developed both

residential and commercial properties.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LONG Tao (“Mr. Long”), Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 64, Mr Long was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 27 May 2014. Mr. Long is currently the Chairman of Beijing Investment
Consultants Inc. and an Independent Director of each of Qingling Motors
Co. Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 1122), UBS SDIC Fund Management Company Limited and Beijing
Whoswho Culture and Media Co., Ltd. Mr. Long is also currently an
Independent Non-executive Director of Beijing Wangfujing Department
Store (Group) Co., Led.* (MM ERMHHE (HH) RBARAF) , a
company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600859). Mr. Long graduated from Research Institute for Fiscal
Science, the Ministry of Finance, majoring in accounting. He holds a

master’s degree in economics.

In the past three years, Mr. Long has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of Beijing North Star Company Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 588), until
28 May 2015.

Mr. Long has extensive knowledge and experience in corporate finance,
accounting, audit, asset appraisal, enterprise restructuring and listing. He
had served at the Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance
and Economics, and the New York office of KPMG Peat Marwick. He had
acted as a member of the Securities Issue and Approval Committee of the
China Securities Regulatory Commission and a member of the Chinese

Accounting Expert Panel for China-Hong Kong Securities Team.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. REN Guo Hua (“Mr. Ren”), Chairman of the RQNC and Member of
the Audit Committee
Aged 58, Mr. Ren was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director

on 27 May 2014.

Mr. Ren is currently the senior advisor of StormHarbour Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited and the General Manager of Sinolink Financial Leasing Co.,
Ltd. He obtained his bachelor’s degree in English and American Literature

from East China Normal University.

Mr. Ren has many years of experience in financial investment products.
He served in various global financial institutions and has many years
of experience in international banking and investment market. He was
a Managing Director of Greater China Origination in StormHarbour
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited. Before that, he was a Managing Director
and head of capital markets of China region in Standard Chartered
Bank Hong Kong and had made valuable contributions to the Debt and
Fixed Income business for the bank. In his earlier career, he also served
in Commonwealth Bank of Australia Hong Kong, Fleet National Bank
Shanghai Representative Office, True Stand Investments Limited (Hong

Kong), Bear Stearns and Bank of China.

Mr. CHEN Fang (“Mr. Chen”), Member of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 57, Mr. Chen was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 27 May 2014.

Mr. Chen is currently the president of Beijing GZT Network Technology
Inc. He obtained his Graduate Degree in Technical Economy from Harbin

Institute of Technology in China.

Mr. Chen has many years of experience in corporate governance as well as
enterprise development and restructuring. He has also established a valuable
network in the business communities. He was the Dean of the Institute of
IT and Social Development Research of the Chongging Technology and

Business University.
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Senior Management

Mr. Zhang Dan Yu

Aged 48, Mr. Zhang joined the Company in May 2015 as the Group Vice
President (Business Development and Corporate Finance). Mr. Zhang is
mainly responsible for the Group’s overall corporate management as well
as the formulation and implementation of strategies regarding corporate
development and financing. Mr. Zhang graduated from Guangzhou Institute
of Foreign Trade with a bachelor’s degree in economics. Mr. Zhang also
engages in corporate management consulting and investment advisory, and is
proficient at corporate strategy planning, corporate merger and acquisition,
bulk commodities trading and corporate asset management. Mr. Zhang has
over 20 years of working experience in difference economic systems and

corporate culture.

Mr. Zhang served at Hangzhou Tian-Mu-Shan Pharmaceutical Enterprise
Co., Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600671) between 2001 and July 2006. He joined the
company as assistant to General Manager, and was subsequently appointed

as Deputy General Manager in May 2002.

Mr. Yeung Man

Aged 43, Mr. Yeung joined the Company in May 2015 as the Group
Vice President, (Business Development, Corporate Finance, Financial
Management & Control). Mr. Yeung graduated from the University
of Georgia, the United States of America with a Bachelor’s degree in
Accounting and a Bachelor’s degree in Finance and Banking. Mr. Yeung
is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yeung has more than 18 years of experience in corporate
finance and financial management & control and has considerable
experience in initial public offer, reverse takeover, financial management,
corporate finance and auditing. Prior to joining the Company, he held
senior financial management position in several Hong Kong mainboard

listed companies and a PRC private enterprise.

Mr. Ho Kin-Cheong, Kelvin

Mr. HO Kin-cheong, Kelvin, aged 48, is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and holds a bachelor degree
in business administration from Hong Kong Baptist College (now known
as Hong Kong Baptist University). Mr. Ho has over 24 years of experience
in finance and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ho was
responsible for accounting, finance and company secretarial matters for
several listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Ho was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on 30 March 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report for inclusion in the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the
date of this Report.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving for

the highest returns to the Shareholders.

The Company’s principles of corporate governance emphasize on a quality
Board, sound internal controls, independence, transparency of information
and accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the management
are committed to continuously improving corporate governance practices

and an ethical corporate culture as the intrinsic value of the Company.

The Company is maintaining a high standard of corporate governance with
a view to enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving
the interest of its sharcholders as a whole. The Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), save for the deviation from code provision A.2.1;

A.2.7 and E.1.2 of the CG Code.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Group CEO should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Since the new board of directors appointed on 27 May
2014, Mr. WONG Hoi Kin (“Mr. Wong”) had been the Chairman of the
Board and Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung (“Mr. Liao”) had been the Group CEO.
The roles of the Chairman and the Group CEO were separate and not

performed by the same individual.

Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Wong on 11 September 2014, the roles
of both Chairman and Group CEO were performed by Mr. Liao, which
the Board considered as transitional arrangement to cater for a smooth
handover. On 31 March 2015, Mr. Liao resigned from the offices of both
Chairman and Group CEO and Mr. Meng was appointed as the Chairman
and the Group CEO on the same date.

Corporate Governance Report
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After reviewing the business operation of the Group in this transitional
period, the Board considers that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and
the Group CEO in the same individual provides the Company with strong
and consistent leadership, and allows for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies. The Board will
continuously review the business operation and board procedures, and will

make further arrangements if appropriate.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.7 of the CG code, the Chairman should
at least annually hold meetings with the Non-executive Directors (the
“NEDs”) (including Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”))

without the Executive Directors (the “EDs”) present.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, since the Chairman of the Company
held office for a short period of time, no meeting was held by the Chairman
with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive

Directors) without the Executive Directors present.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the board
should invite the Chairmen of the Audit Committee, the RQNC and any
other committees (as appropriate) to attend the annual general meeting (the

“AGM”) and these persons should be available to answer questions at the
AGM.

The Chairmen of the Audit Committee and the RQNC were absent
from the AGM which was held in the year 2014 due to other important

engagement.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility
for leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Directors make decisions objectively in the interests

of the Company.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

A training seminar on responsibilities of directors of listed companies was
delivered by a legal adviser to the new Board, namely Mr. Wong, Mr. Liao,
Mr. Liu, Mr. Meng, Mr. Long, Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen on the date of their
appointments. In order to further assist the Directors to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills, the Company provides relevant materials about
the latest updates on development and changes in the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance and the relevant applicable laws from time to time

and also arranges and funds suitable training programmes for the Directors.
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Board Composition

As at 31 March 2015, the Board comprised five Directors including one
Executive Director, namely, Mr. Meng (the Chairman and the Group CEO),
one Non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu (the Vice Chairman of the
Board) and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Long,
Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms of

its diversity of experience, expertise and independence.

Change in information of Directors

Summary changes of the Board and the Board Committees during the year

are as follows:

(1) On 27 May 2014, all the then Directors of the Company, namely,
Datuk LIM Chee Wah, Mr. XIAO Huan Wei, Mr. David YU Hon To,
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J. and Mr. SOO Ying Pooi resigned from
their offices. The new Board was appointed on the same date with

details below:

(a) Mr. Wong was appointed as an Executive Director, the Chairman

of the Board and a member of each of the Executive Committee

and the RQNC;

(b) Mr. Liao was appointed as an Executive Director, the Group
CEO, the Group Chief Financial Officer (the “Group CFO”),
the Chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of the

RQNCG;
(¢)  Mr. Meng was appointed as a Non-executive Director;
(d) Mr. Liu was appointed as a Non-executive Director;

() Mr. Long was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the RQNG;

(f) Mr. Ren was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the RQNC and a member of the Audit

Committee; and

(g Mr. Chen was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of both Audit Committee and the
RQNC.
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(2) Mr. Liu was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Board on 2 July
2014.

(3) Mr. Wong resigned from the offices of an Executive Director, the
Chairman of the Board and a member of each of the Executive

Committee and the RQNC with effect from 11 September 2014.

(4) Mr. Meng was re-designated as an Executive Director and appointed
as a member of each of the Executive Committee and the RQNC
with effect from 19 September 2014. He was also appointed as the
Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the Executive Committee and

the Group CEO with effect from 31 March 2015.

(5) Mr. Liao was appointed a Chairman of the Board on 11 September
2014 and subsequently resigned from the office of Group CFO with
effect from 15 September 2014. Further, he resigned from the offices
of an Executive Director, the Chairman of the Board, the Group
CEQ, the Chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of the

RQNC with effect from 31 March 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual Report, there were no
other changes to the information of the Directors as required to be disclosed

pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy on 4 September 2013
which sets out the approaches to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Further, the Company sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against the objective criteria, having due

regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

20 Crown International Corporation Limited Annual Report 2014/2015

(2) BRAR-F-NELH HERLS
EREEA R

(3) HEERERTER FEFFERUR
POZETRHM REALRAZRE
WE B ZF-WEA B
ﬁo

(4) WAETLPATE S > MR BT
ZHELHM REALRLZTE TR
H-MZF-NELAHIuH AR -
WL HERFGER ATZES
ERBREETRARK BT IR
H=E+—REXK-

G) BEARZZF-NERA+ - HEZ
LR L - AR BT B
ME - oF-WEA A B
Moo Bbhh- PR ATE R EF R
FECREMATBAR BT ZETER K
B RELARAZTHERE -HF
—HEZH =R RERK

B L SCHr @ A > AR H B - AR BRIk
TR SE13.51B(1) A T 88 2 = G R
90 AT: o] L At 33 B o

HHETZIULBOR

ERIAR R -ZFNLANHRAEFTS
TEALBUR - ZBORPI M E T RSO R &
JEAL T BRI Z J5 8F o A4 A B S BR A
0% B % oAU P TH 2 R B R BUR K A aE R
Lo WA - AAFBREFGRE H L 0L
Ay SR IR BB B OBR % AR T R AT R R
ZEF AN TR R E AL
O 2 I8 5 T 2% 1 2 3 H & ool > B4
ARLAS BB A 1) ~ 4 B~ SCAk S B AT S B
T~ SRR - TORE Sk o B G BT R AT
¥ VLRI N MEZ 2 SR - S DL % LA 5 I8
388 [l T T B e R R R Bt b2
%o



Currently, the Board comprises five members coming from various
professional backgrounds including property development, accounting and
corporate governance, etc. The Board is of the view that the current Board
has provided a good balance of skills and experience to the Company and

will continue to review its composition from time to time.

Directors’ Nomination and Appointment

The Company, since April 2006, has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” for setting out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), the Board is empowered to appoint a Director to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Sharcholders (being two or
more Sharcholders holding not less than ten per cent. of the entire issued
share capital of the Company) are empowered to nominate candidates for
directorship and subject to Shareholders’ approval at the general meeting
of the Company (the “General Meeting”). The RQNC can also nominate
candidates for directorship for appointment by the Board. Any Director
appointed by the Board during the year shall hold office until the next AGM

and be eligible for re-election.

The basis of determining the emoluments of Directors are based on the
duties and responsibilities of the individual Director by reference to the

prevailing market conditions.

The Company has purchased Directors’ & Officers’ Liability insurance for

all Directors.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2015

are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this Annual Report for the year ended

31 March 2015 by band is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HKD)
o T AR (v T

& 51,000,000
1,000,001 % 1,500,000

Nil to 1,000,000
1,000,001 to 1,500,000

Board Practices

The Board holds meetings regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss business development as well as
the overall strategy of the Company. All Directors are given opportunities
to include matters in the meeting agenda. Formal notice of at least 14 days
is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given for
all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and
available for inspection by the Directors. Directors have full and unrestricted
access to relevant information in a timely manner with appropriate
information in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make
an informed decision and discharge their duties and responsibilities. The
Board has adopted procedures to enable the Directors to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
to assist them in performing their duties, as provided in the Company’s

“Guideline on Independent Professional Advice”.

During the year under review, the then Board of Directors held two
meetings before the incoming of the new Board and the attendance record of

each of Directors is set out below:—

Mg (B HRTD) ZFRBESCEB.LS
oM BN H (ERRINEREZZ
—IAE = = H IR AR B 2 I R
AEHREF LR EARWE]
T T 5 R A8 T

Number of individuals
AN¥

HEHEFHER

A SR A BT Y OE o KA
FRERAT > VLB A 2 W) Z SR 0 e S K
S o 2 BE I A G E G R R
O\ i o I o HE T 2 A T R AT W R A
+04 H g e g am o BT A
Bk I BN o kAl 8
H O ) B A7 B LW e AR o e A
T 486 B ) 3 308 07 ICAS: BT AT 9 R > TR
Z T OB B R DA A S A0 ) 0 e o e
FHEZIME - EFTORNSHTEEFR
P30 T DT RO L SRR (A A
RAFE ) Z R > DUt By S AT IR -
PR P MR A A Rl 2 Ol Sr R RS
o

W AR - B R R R
HTRTERAT TR 45 4 T R A
W

Eligible No. of Attendance Rate
Directors to Attend Attendance (%)
o £ 5 HiYERE 1 % (%)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah EX= N 2 1 50
Mrt. XIAO Huan Wei H RS A 2 2 100
Mr. David YU Hon To ATV e A 2 2 100
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P S R Af e A A A 2 2 100
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi A i 5 A 2 2 100

Note: All of the above Directors resigned on 27 May 2014.
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From 27 May 2014 and up to 31 March 2015, the new Board held five

meetings and the attendance record is set out below:—

Directors

#H

Mr. WONG Hoi Kin New!
Mr. LTIAO Pin Tsung Nete?
Mr. MENG Jin Long

Mr. LIU Hong Shen

Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. REN Guo Hua

Mr. CHEN Fang

g B g AR
JBE i B g A M2
RS
BIALR ok
it 3 e A
A1 I 3 S A
B e A

R B in ol (4)

HoZZF-WUELH -+ LHREZFE —RF

SAETHBIE R ERTRT T RS
ik o R A BB nE

Eligible No. of Attendance Rate

to Attend Attendance (%)

g gpiRve K % 3 (%)

2 2 100

5 5 100

5 5 100

5 4 80

5 4 80

5 3 60

5 4 80

During the year ended 31 March 2015, an AGM and two extraordinary

general meetings of the Company (“EGM”) were held and the attendance

record is set out below:

Directors

#E

Mr. WONG Hoi Kin Y g B g A
Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung M JBE i i g e M
Mr. MENG Jin Long FEA b
Mr. LIU Hong Shen BIAL R
Mr. LONG Tao W A

Mr. REN Guo Hua AR
Mr. CHEN Fan B o 2
Note:

1. Mr. WONG Hoi Kin resigned on 11 September 2014.

2. Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung resigned on 31 March 2015.

PEEZFR-RFEZHA =4 HIRE R
T R B A A R e AR A ) JB A S
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mE:
Annual General Meeting Extraordinary General Meetings
Bt A AE K & JBE RS B K €
Eligible to No. of Attendance  Eligible to No. of Attendance
Attend  Attendance Rate (%) Attend  Attendance Rate (%)
HE® & HE® o &
WERE  HBERE %) HEXRE  BERE (%)
0 0 N/ARE 1 1 100
1 1 100 2 2 100
1 1 100 2 0 0
1 0 0 2 0 0
1 0 0 2 0 0
1 0 0 2 0 0
1 0 0 2 0 0
Pff 5
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BEAT:
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Independence

The Company believes that independence brings unbiased judgment
and conscience in decision making. The Board currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors. One of the Independent Non-
executive Directors possesses accounting expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Board received from each Independent
Non-executive Director a written confirmation of his independence and was

satisfied with his independence as required by the Listing Rules.

All the then and current Independent Non-executive Directors were/are
appointed for a specific term, other than a former Director Mr. Alan
Howard SMITH, J.2, who resigned on 27 May 2014 and did not have
a fixed term of appointment, but was subject to retirement by rotation
and re-clection at the AGM. According to article 133 of the Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors who served longest on the Board
since they were last elected, shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election at
the AGM. Pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every Director
shall retire by rotation at least once every three years. The Board will ensure
that each Director shall retire by rotation in the above manner in order to

comply with the code provisions of the CG Code.

According to the article 110 of the Articles of Association, a Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to

re-election by Shareholders at first AGM after his appointment.

Relationship

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship with one another.

Chairman and CEO
The responsibilities of the Chairman and the Group CEO have been clearly

defined in the Company’s “Guideline on Division of Roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer”.

The positions of the Chairman and the Group CEO were held separately
by Datuk LIM Chee Wah and Mr. XIAO Huan Wei respectively until
their resignations on 27 May 2014. On the same date, Mr. Wong was
appointed as the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Liao was appointed as
the Group CEO. Mr. Wong provided leadership for the Board and ensured
that the Board worked effectively and that all key and appropriate issues
were discussed in a timely manner. Mr. Liao took the lead in the Group’s

operation and business development.
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Mr. Wong resigned from the office of the Chairman and Mr. Liao took over
the role of the Chairman with effect from 11 September 2014. Since then,
the roles of both the Chairman and the Group CEO had been performed by
Mr. Liao which the Board considered as a transitional arrangement to cater
for a smooth handover. On 31 March 2015, Mr. Liao resigned from the
offices of both the Chairman and the Group CEO and Mr. Meng took over
both offices. Currently, Mr. Meng is responsible for providing leadership for
the Board to ensure that all the key issues are discussed in a timely manner.
Also, he oversees the day to day business of the Group and delegates to the

management team who works under his leadership and supervision.

Non-executive Directors

Each of the current Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years. The term of office is subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association and
the CG Code.

Matters Reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and
the Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the

management.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.

Board Committees

The Board has established various committees, including the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee and the RQNC of the Company and
delegated authority to them for overseeing certain aspects of the Company’s
affairs. There are clear written terms of reference for the Board committees.
Reports of the Board committee meetings are presented to the Board

regularly.
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Executive Committee

On 27 May 2014, Mr. XIAO Huan Wei and Datuk LIM Chee Wah resigned
as the Chairman and a member of the Executive Committee respectively.
On the same date, Mr. Liao was appointed as the Chairman of the Executive
Committee and the other member was Mr. Wong. Upon the resignation of
Mr. Wong on 11 September 2014, Mr. Meng was appointed as a member of
the Executive Committee. Mr. Liao resigned from his office with effect from
31 March 2015 and Mr. Meng took over the role of the Chairman of the
Executive Committee. Mr. Meng has been the only member in the Executive

Committee since then.

The Executive Committee is delegated to be responsible for the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company and its
principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Currently, the decisions

of the Committee are made by way of written resolutions of Mr. Meng.

Audit Committee

On 27 May 2014, Mr. David YU Hon To ceased to act as the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P and Mr. SOO

Ying Pooi ceased to act as members of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company who possess appropriate banking, commercial
and financial experience and skills to, amongst other matters, undertake the
review of financial statements in accordance with good practice of financial
reporting. Currently, the Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Long and the

other two members are Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen.
The Audit Committee’s main duties, among others, are as follows:

(1) to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the Independent Auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the Independent Auditor, and any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(2) to develop and implement policy on engaging Independent Auditor for

provision of non-audit services;
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(3) to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements with exercise of

professional judgment before submission to the Board; and

(4) to review financial control, internal control and risk management

systems.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March

2015 and the attendance record is set out below:
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The main works performed by the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2015 included the review of Independent Auditor’s audit
plan, the review of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014 and interim financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2014 with recommendation to the Board for approval. It has also
reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system, approved
the internal audit report and reviewed and recommended the appointment

and re-appointment of Independent Auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
results for the year ended 31 March 2015, including the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group and recommended to the
Board for consideration. The Audit Committee has also recommended
the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), Certified Public
Accountants as the Company’s independent auditor at the forthcoming

AGM of the Company.
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Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee (the
“RQNC”)

On 27 May 2014, Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P ceased to act as the
Chairman of the RQNC and Datuk LIM Chee Wah, Mr. David YU Hon To
and Mr. SOO Ying Pooi resigned as members of the RQNC . The RQNC
comprises all the Independent Non-executive Directors and all the Executive
Directors. Currently, the RQNC is chaired by Mr. Ren and the other three
members are Mr. Meng, Mr. Long and Mr. Chen.

The RQNC has adopted clear terms of reference and its principal duties are
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and to draw up procedures for
formulating an incentive-based remuneration policy. The RQNC is
authorized by the Board to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on remuneration of Non-
executive Directors. No Director or any of his associate will be involved in

deciding his own remuneration.

The RQNC is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

During the year under review, the then RQNC held two meetings before the

incoming of the new Board and the attendance record is set out below:—
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Eligible to No. of Attendance Rate
Directors Attend Attendance (%)
g R 3N RS R B 2 (%)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P S S A K F AL 2 2 100
Datuk LIM Chee Wah FEMBE 2 1 50
Mr. David YU Hon To AT ek 2 2 100
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi I i 5 A2 2 2 100
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From 27 May 2014 and up to 31 March 2015, the RQNC held two

meetings and the attendance record is set out below:

porate Governance Report (Continued)
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Eligible to No. of Attendance Rate
Directors Attend Attendance (%)
o Eagi i Re R X i (%)
Mr. REN Guo Hua I 3 S A 2 1 50
Mr. WONG Hoi Kin WG EREA 2 2 100
Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung JB i A e A 2 2 100
Mr. MENG Jin Long e e A 0 0 N/A A H
Mr. LONG Tao [ 2 2 100
Mr. CHEN Fang B o A 2 2 100

The main works performed by the RQNC during the year ended
31 March 2015 included the recommendation and approval of the
directors’ fees of Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors and reviewed and approved the
year 2014/15 remuneration package of Executive Directors. It has also
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, recommended
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and assessed the

independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility to maintain a good
standard of corporate governance practices and business ethics within the

Group under the terms of reference of the corporate governance function.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties

including:

(1) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the directors and senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
p g g y req

(4) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual (if any) applicable to employees and the directors; and

(5) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report as required under the Listing
Rules.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” of the Listing Rules. Having
been made specific enquiries by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the Securities Code in their securities transactions during

the year ended 31 March 2015.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2015 were audited by PwC whose term of office will expire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGM. The Audit Committee has recommended to
the Board that PwC be nominated for re-appointment as the Independent

Auditor of the Company at the forthcoming AGM.

PwC provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the Independent Auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements and to
report its opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622). The Audit Committee
is obliged to ensure continuing Independent Auditor’s objectivity and

safeguard independence.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, audit services fee and non-audit

services fee for review of interim results amounted to approximately
HK$1,286,000 and HK$150,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s financial statements
are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

and that judgment and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
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PwC, the Independent Auditor of the Company, has presented its
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report in respect of the
Company’s consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March

2015 as set out on pages 47 to 48.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for internal controls and reviewing
its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that assets
are adequately protected against unauthorized use or disposal and that the
interests of Sharcholders are safeguarded. The systems in place are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organizational structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it for
decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial, operational

and compliance issues can be maintained.

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has
reviewed the need for an internal audit function since April 2006 and
considered it appropriate to continue with the practice of outsourcing the
internal audit functions. Accordingly, the Company has engaged an external
accounting firm as Internal Auditor to provide internal audit services to the

Group on an annual basis.

The Internal Auditor has conducted evaluation and tests in connection with

the following management’s assertions for the year ended 31 March 2015:

(1) the system of internal control of the Group is effective;

(2) the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.
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The Internal Auditor also formulates the annual internal audit plan and
procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews on the operations of
each division to identify any irregularities and risks, develops action plans
and makes recommendations to address the identified risks, and report to
the Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal audit
process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material

issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code, the Directors keep reviewing the internal control system of the
Group and further improve the system with respect to financial control,
operational control, compliance control and risk management on top of the
comprehensive review of the internal control system conducted under the
guidance of the Board. In addition, this review also considers the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and

budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.

The Company will continue where necessary to improve its internal control

system and strengthen its risk management capability.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. KWOK Siu Man (“Mr. Kwok”) has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since 13 November
2013. Mr. Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK)
Limited (“Boardroom”) to assume such office and Boardroom has been
providing certain corporate secretarial services to the Company pursuant to
an engagement letter entered into between the Company and Boardroom.
The primary person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been
contacting in respect of company secretarial matters is Mr. Meng (an
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Board and the Group CEO) since

the resignation of Mr. Liao on 31 March 2015.

As Mr. Kwok was first appointed as the company secretary of a Hong Kong
Hang Seng Index constituent stock company in 1991 and has been acting in
such capacity for a number of other reputable companies listed on the Stock
Exchange at substantial times since then, he was not required to have at least
15 hours of relevant continuous professional development training for the

year ended 31 March 2015 under the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings shall be convened by the Directors on the requisition
of Shareholders pursuant to section 566 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings. A request must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A request may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form, and must be

authenticated by the person or persons making it.

For putting forward proposals at any general meeting or enquiries to
the Board, he/she shall do so in writing to the Company Secretary. The
letter shall state clearly the identity of the Shareholder, the number of
shareholding, correspondence address and telephone number, and the
related suggestions and enquiries. The Company shall, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, pass the said matter to the Board and respond according

to the situation.

In addition, the Company may receive letters or phone enquiries from
Sharcholders from time to time, the Company shall, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, respond as quickly as possible. For matters concerning
the Company’s shares and basic information of announcements, enquiries

shall be put forward to the below address.

Contacts of the Company are as follows:

Suite 902, 9th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3168 2588

Fax: (852) 3168 2599

Office Hours: 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Monday to Friday (except public holidays)
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The rights of Sharcholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all relevant
circulars to Sharcholders and will be explained during the proceedings of

meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company following each general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Shareholders and the Board. Mr. Liao, a former Executive
Director who was also the then Chairman and Group CEO, attended the
2014 Annual General Meeting (“2014 AGM”). The chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the RQNC and the Independent Board Committee (where
applicable), or in their absence, other members of the respective committees,

are available to answer questions at the Shareholders’ Meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogues
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an

informative and a timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

(http://www.crownicorp.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
Articles of Association on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. During the year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the date
of this Annual Report, no amendments were made to the constitutional

documents of the Company.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
provision of management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 19 to the

consolidated financial statements.

CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE

The registered office of the Company has been changed to Suite 901, 9th
Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on 17 June
2014 and subsequently to Suite 1603 at the same building on 10 September
2014. The current registered office is located at Suite 902, 9th Floor,
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect from 30
April 2015.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

A special resolution was passed by the Shareholders at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 15 July 2014 to change the name of the Company
from “VXL Capital Limited 8 @A PR A H” to “Crown International
Corporation Limited 58 B2 ER 4 M A L A 5]”. The change of Company

name has become effective from 11 August 2014.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis by operating segments of the Group’s performance, assets and
liabilities for the Year is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 49.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the turnover attributable to the Group’s
largest customer was approximately 59.4% of the Group’s total turnover
and the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers

accounted for 100% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group did not have any purchase recorded for the year ended 31 March
2015.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers

noted above.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year

(year ended 31 March 2014: NIL).

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the year (FY 2014: NIL).

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties for investment purposes are set out in

Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in

Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 2 July 2014, the Company allotted and issued 300,000,000 new
ordinary shares at HK$0.36 each to a placee pursuant to a placing agreement
entered into between the Company and an independent placing agent dated
19 June 2014. These new ordinary shares were issued under the general
mandate granted to the Directors pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
at the AGM of the Company held on 4 September 2013. The new shares
rank equally among themselves and with the existing shares in all respects.
The net proceeds of the placing were for general working capital of the

Group.
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On 29 October 2014, the Company allotted and issued 330,399,800 new
ordinary shares at HK$0.70 each to not less than six independent placees
pursuant to a placing agreement entered into between the Company and
an independent placing agent dated 21 October 2014. These new ordinary
shares were issued under the general mandate granted to the Directors
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the AGM of the Company held
on 17 September 2014. The new shares rank equally among themselves and
with the existing shares in all respects. The net proceeds of the placing were

for general working capital of the Group.

On 24 February 2015, the Company allotted and issued 440,000,000
consideration shares at HK$0.70 each (“Consideration Shares”) to three
separate parties under the discretion of Sino Oasis Oversea Limited (“Sino
Oasis”) pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement dated 31 October
2014 entered into between Crown International Resort Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (“Crown International Resort”)
and Sino Oasis, in which Sino Oasis agreed to sell and Crown International
Resort agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of Zhongshan
Hualian Industrial Development Co., Ltd at a total consideration of
HK$1,008,000,000, of which HK$700,000,000 was satisfied by cash
payment and the remaining HK$308,000,000 was satisfied by issue and

allotment of the consideration shares.

At the discretion of Sino Oasis a total numbers of 440,000,000 shares in
proportion of 154,000,000, 154,000,000 and 132,000,000 shares were
being issued to Advance Bonus Limited, Luckwell Limited and Best Plus
Ventures Limited respectively. The consideration shares were issued under
the specific mandate granted to the Directors pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the special general meeting of the Company held on 23
February 2015. The consideration shares rank equally among themselves and

with the existing shares in all respects.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 132.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its Shares listed on the Stock Exchange
nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such

shares during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) on 5 June

2005 with a term of ten (10) years of which the key terms are summarized

below:

(i) The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options
to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the growth and development of the

Group;

(i) The participants of the Scheme include any employee or officer
(whether full time or part time, and including any Executive Director
but excluding any Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Director) of any company within the Group or any Invested

Entity (as defined in the Scheme);

(iii) The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the Scheme
unless approval from the Shareholders has been obtained. The
number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme of the Group if such grant would result in the 30% limit being

exceeded;

(iv) Unless approved by Shareholders in general meeting, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
to any Eligible Participant (as defined in the Scheme) under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period during which an
option is exercised by the grantee, shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of Shares for the time being in issue. Any grant of options to a
substantial Shareholder or any of their respective Associates (as defined
in the Scheme) or an INED in aggregate more than 0.1% of Shares in
issue, and having an aggregate value, based on the closing price on the
date of such grant, in excess of HK$5.0 million, must be approved by

Shareholders in general meeting;
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(v) An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period (which may not expire later
than 10 years from the date of grant) to be notified by the Board to
each grantee. Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its sole
discretion, there is no requirement on the minimum period for which
any option granted or to be granted must be held or the performance

targets which must be achieved before the option can be exercised;

(vi) A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of consideration for
the grant of an option is required to be paid by each grantee upon
acceptance of the option. An option may be accepted by a grantee

within 28 days from the date of offer of grant of the option;

(vii) The subscription price payable upon exercising any particular option
granted under the Scheme is determined based on a formula: P = N x
Ep, where “P” is the subscription price; “N” is the number of shares to
be subscribed; and “Ep” is the exercise price of the highest of (a) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of offer; (b) the official closing
price of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer; and (c) the average of the official closing
prices of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

offer and as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the Scheme; and

(viii) The life of the Scheme is until the tenth anniversary of the adoption
date of the Scheme or the date on which the Scheme is terminated by

resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting, whichever is earlier.

As at 31 March 2015, there were no outstanding share options during
the year ended 31 March 2015, no share option was granted, exercised or

cancelled or lapsed. The Scheme expired on 4 June 2015.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the date of

this Annual Report were:

Present

Executive Director

Mr. MENG Jin Long ®et !

Non-executive Director

Mr. LIU Hong Shen Netwe?2)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LONG Tao MNete?
Mr. REN Guo Hua ®Nee®
Mr. CHEN Fang (Nete?

Past

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Hoi Kin ®ewe®
Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung ®e«?)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah MNew®
Mr. XIAO Huan Wej MNete?

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P Net10
Mr. David YU Hon To Mew!D
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi MNote 12)

Notes:

(1)  Mr. MENG Jin Long was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 27 May
2014 and re-designated as an Executive Director on 19 September 2014.

(2)  Mr. LIU Hong Shen was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 27 May

2014.

(3)  Mr. LONG Tao was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on

27 May 2014.

(4)  Mr. REN Guo Hua was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director

on 27 May 2014.
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(5)  Mr. CHEN Fang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on
27 May 2014.

(6)  Mr. WONG Hoi Kin was appointed as an Executive Director on 27 May 2014
and resigned on 11 September 2014.

(7)  Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung was appointed as an Executive Director on 27 May 2014
and resigned on 31 March 2015

(8) Datuk LIM Chee Wah resigned as an Executive Director on 27 May 2014.

(9)  Mr. XIAO Huan Wei resigned as an Executive Director on 27 May 2014.

(10) Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 27 May 2014.

(11) Mr. David YU Hon To resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director on
27 May 2014.

(12) Mr. SOO Ying Pooi resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director on 27
May 2014.

Pursuant to Article 110 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election automatically at the
meeting. However, this requirement is subject to the provisions of the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Article 133 of the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors (the number nearest to
and less than one-third) who have been longest in office since they were last
elected or appointed by the Shareholders shall retire but shall be eligible for

re-election.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year ended March 31, 2015 or during the period
from April 1, 2015 to the date of this report are available on the website of

the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Long, Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. At the date of this Report, the Company considers all of them to be

independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 13 to 15.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year are set out in Note 14 to

the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Meng, Mr. Liu, Mr. Liao have entered into service contracts with
the Company during the year which are determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation, whereas Mr. Liao has terminated his contract upon his

resignation effective on 31 March 2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors who is proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
Senior Management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong) when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the

Companies Ordinance.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2015 and up to the date of this Annual Report, none of the
Directors nor his Associates was interested in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the

Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set
out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly subsisted at end of the year or at any

time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors or the Chief Executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code as set out in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short positions of every person, other
than the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company, in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in the register maintained by

RER-HEZA=Z+—H o HEAAFM
15 77 I ) B R 491 26 33 ok A A = %8 i Mk i
FLER  BRACA F R KR mAT BN BN B

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders
Ji& K 4 T

Crown International Fund Corporation
(“Crown International”)

Crown International Fund Corporation
([ Crown International |)

Oasis Universal Group Limited
(“Oasis Universal”)

Oasis Universal Group Limited
([ Oasis Universal ] )

Hung Man (formerly known as Xiong
Shu Min) (“Ms. Hung”)

8 A (i B IR )
(Mg t1)

Best Plus Ventures Limited
(“Best Plus”)

Best Plus Ventures Limited
([Best Plus |)

Chau Cheok Wa (“Mr. Chau”)

JdidE ([ A ])

Nature of Interests

B 55 VB

Interests in Shares
— Beneficial Interests

T e 2 M 2 — B 4 HE 2R

Interests in Shares
— Controlled Corporation

T ey 2 M 2 — 32 4% 3

Interests in Shares
— Controlled Corporation

T ey Z M 2 — 32 4% 5

Interests in Shares
— Beneficial Interests

T B 2 M 2 — T A A AR

Interests in Shares
— Controlled Corporation

T B 2 M A — 24 1k

B4 N TR AS 2 5] JBe A B AH B B v 2 i 25
WEWF

Ordinary shares/ Approx. % of

Notes:

1. 1,900,000,000 Shares were beneficially owned by Crown Landmark
Corporation, which was 100% owned by Crown Landmark Fund L.P, a
partnership in which Crown International was the general partner. Crown
International was in turn 100% owned by Crown Land Corp. Limited, a 100%
wholly-owned subsidiary of Oasis Universal. Oasis Universal is solely owned
by Ms. Hung. Therefore, Oasis Universal and Ms. Hung were deemed or
taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Crown Landmark
Corporation by virtue of the SFO.

2. 132,000,000 shares were beneficially owned by Best Plus which is solely owned
by Mr. Chau. Accordingly, Mr. Chau is deemed or taken to be interested in all
the shares beneficially owned by Best Plus by virtue of the SFO.

3. All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the shares and
underlying share.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 4 July 2013, the Company, “U” Inns & Hotels Investment Limited
(“UIHIL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of UIHHL (as defined below)
and Fortune Sea Group Limited (“FSG”), entered into the Asset Swap
Agreement pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to acquire,
and FSG conditionally agreed to dispose of, the shares of “U” Inns & Hotels
Holdings Limited (“UIHHL”), a 74.1%-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The consideration payable for the UIHHL shares would be satisfied by way
of transfer of the shares of “U” Inns & Hotels (Xi’an) Hotel Management
Company Limited (“U Inns Xi’an”) (the “Xi’an shares”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of UTHIL, from UIHIL to FSG (the “Transaction”).

The Transaction was completed on 18 April 2014. After completion,
UIHHL and all of its members and subsidiaries (excluding U Inns Xi'an)
became wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. The Company ceased to
hold any interest in U Inns Xi’an and U Inns Xi'an ceased to be a subsidiary

of the Company.

Since FSG is a substantial shareholder of UIHHL, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, FSG is a connected person of the Company
and the transaction constitutes a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

have been complied with.

Details of the Asset Swap Agreement are disclosed in the announcement and

circular of the Company dated 4 July 2013 and 13 August 2013 respectively.

On 2 July 2014, the Company acquired a 100% wholly-owned subsidiary,
Harvest Kindom Limited from a related party at a consideration of
US$120,000, which in turns holding the entire equity of two subsidiaries

including COD Corporation Limited which is incorporated in Hong Kong,
and BRI 3 (P ) A LA ] which is incorporated in the PRC.

On 19 June 2014, the Company issued promissory notes in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 to an investor. The investor later
became a substantial shareholder of the Company through subscription of
new shares in the Company. On 4 September 2014, the investor agreed
to sell and Crown Landmark Corporation, the controlling shareholder of
the Company agreed to buy the promissory notes at a consideration of
HK$120,900,000. On 21 November 2014, the Company early redeemed
the promissory notes and fully repaid the principal amount and the
HK$1,200,000 accrued interest.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 17 to 34 in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the reporting period are provided in Note

33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The section headed “Business Review” is set out in the Chairman’s

Statements and Directors Commentaries.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to and within the knowledge
of the Directors, there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of

this Annual Report.

CHANGE IN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR IN
THE PRECEDING THREE YEARS

On 26 February 2013, Pan-China (HK) CPA Limited (“Pan-China”)
resigned as the Independent Auditor of the Group. PwC who was appointed
as the Independent Auditor of the Group with effect from 28 February 2013

to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Pan-China.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY 2015
have been audited by PwC who will retire and, being eligible, will offer itself

for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
MENG Jin Long

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CROWN INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Crown
International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 131, which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Répo‘
T A% g e (A

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2015, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015
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2d Statement of Comprehensive Income
AR AT AR AR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E _F—HAFE=H =—1—H ILFF

2015 2014
ZE R ZE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 Tt F#oT
Turnover CEX 5 3,632 5,981
Other gains, net H A 2 ) 3 A 6 117,568 38,441
Revaluation gain on investment properties BEWEZ B EA 17 2,143 -
Staff costs & B AR 7 (8,070) (10,382)
Depreciation and amortization P78 % kB (1,420) (2,423)
Other operating expenses, net o Ath 28 75 BH 3 i 40 (88,480) (26,711)
Operating profit R v 8 25,373 4,906
Finance income WA 9 352 364
Finance costs (L2 gWN 10 (2,641) (44,729)
Other non-operating income HoAth I B2 WA 11 138,125 -
Profit/(loss) before taxation BrBinr sl (EE) 161,209 (39,459)
Taxation charge i IE 32 12 (6,415) (1,292)
Profit/(loss) for the year FENRERA S (EE) 154,794 (40,751)
Other comprehensive loss: H At 2 THI 5 4H
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss WREEN S HEHRSKZEA
Currency translation differences A s 5 5 (34,746) (4,085)
Total other comprehensive loss for the year A Py B Al 2 i i T AR (34,746) (4,085)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year EREHBRA (BE) 585 120,048 (44,8306)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: DL & 05 A i)~
(KEH) -
— Owner of the Company —RAFHEAEN 155,067 (45,288)
— Non-controlling interests — I B 2 (273) 4,537
154,794 (40,751)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) PLF 45 05 REAG & T
atcributable to: WA (B4R ) #a %
— Owner of the Company . NIk DN 120,321 (48,315)
— Non-controlling interests — JE 5 M 2 (273) 3,479
120,048 (44,836)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to equity — A% 2y 7] HE % £ A MEAE
holders of the Company for the year ENEREN (EH)
(expressed in HK cent per share) (DL Al 2251 )
— basic — B 13 7.95 centsfill (2.96) centsfll]
— diluted — i 13 7.95 centsfill (2.96) centsfll

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 131 are an integral part of these BE B Y S 55 2 131 B Z B o A A A 5 B 5 ik
consolidated financial statements. Fz Moy
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Consolidated Statement o

i B W B AR DL AR

As at 31 March 2015 B —~F—HFE = =1—H

2015 2014
ZEhE R NUE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B i it 52 Tt
ASSETS & E
Non-current assets I B
Property, plant and equipment EN G & 15 6,781 93,040
Land use rights - Hl 3 RE 16 - 5,345
Investment propertics B"EWHE 17 1,672,411 98,348
Construction in progress fEg TR 18 - 174
Available-for-sale financial assets wl 4k B B R 20 1,128 1,128
Goodwill T 21 65,240 -
1,745,560 198,035
Current assets i B
Assets held for sale Fife B A - 250,931
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits At R WKk T~ BEA AR O
B i 4 22 620,237 10,955
Cash and cash equivalents Bl 4 M B &Y 23 34,630 41,277
654,867 303,163
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities i B £
Other payables and accruals Al E A5 R TE % ME ST A 24 36,258 69,149
Liabilities classified as held for sale SRR R B Z AR - 51,199
Borrowing fi 25 500,753 407,429
Income tax payable JE A Fir 4 Bt 2,807 -
539,818 527,777
Net current assets/(liabilities) WEIEE, (A)FH 115,049 (224,614)
Total assets less current liabilities H8 DU B AL 1,860,609 (26,579)
Non-current liabilities I i B £ %
Other payables and accruals LAt B A ok T e R S A 24 763,348 -
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities HE S B IE B A KA E 26 331,164 13,114
1,094,512 13,114
Net assets/ (liabilities) B, (A FHE 766,097 (39,693)
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i B

of Financial Position Continued)

ik ()

As at 31 March 2015 B = F—HFE=H =1—H

2015 2014
ZERE RN
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5% T T o0
EQUITY HE 4%
Capital and reserves & A B fi i
Share capital Je A 27 971,402 167,345
Other reserves J Ath 5 28 (205,305) (298,892)
Total shareholders’ surplus/(deficit) BB, (s &) 8% 766,097 (131,547)
Non-controlling interest I B 2% - 91,854
Total equity HE £ 48 70 766,097 (39,693)

The financial statements on pages 49 to 131 were approved by the Board of

Directors on 30 June 2015 and were signed on its behalf

Mr. MENG Jin Long
o < e ek

Chairman

E3

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 131 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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52

Consolidated Statement o

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HFE=H =+4—H ILF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

YL LN 1
Non-
Share Share Capital Exchange  Revaluation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interest  Total equity
ek I it B BRG 152 B e Rtk BE RERES H i A
Note HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
i T Ti#x T T T Ti#n T T T
Balance at 1 April 2014 REZ-WENA—H & 167,345 - 51,671 34,619 14,074 (399,256) (131,547) 91,854 (39,693)
Comprehensive income: ZHRA:
~ Profit for the year ~ SRR - - - - - 155,067 155,067 (@73) 154,794
Other comprehensive income: S 2w
- Currency translation differences MR - - - (2,622) - - (2,622) - (2,622)
- Realisation of exchange gain upon - SBE Rk A
disposal and deregistration of foreign B AR 2 ELER
subsidiaries - - - (32,124) - - (32,124) - (32,124)
- Transfer of revaluation surplus upon — 1t B M 24 7
disposal of a foreign subsidiary HEREHER - - - - (6,968) 6,968 - - -
Total comprehensive income(loss) 2HWA/ (BHE) 45 - - - (34,746) (6,968) 162,035 120321 (@73) 120,048
Transactions with equity holders: 3 EEEIN P TR
- Acquisition of non-controlling inerest OB K AR - - (43,756) 12,103 4919 - (26,734) (91,581) (118,315)
- Issuance of new shares - RATRR R 804,057 - - - - - 804,057 - 804,057
Total transactions with equity holders SRS FHH AR FT 228514 804,057 - (43,756) 12,103 4919 - 777,313 (91,581) 685,742
Balance at 31 March 2015 REZ-HEZAZT-HZ
Bl 971,402 - 7915 11,976 12,025 (237,221) 766,097 - 766,097
Balance at 31 March 2013 REF-ZEZAEH-H2
b 3 15,296 152,049 51,671 37,646 14,074 (353,968) (83,232) 88,375 5,143
Comprehensive income: 2HRA:
- (Loss)/profit for the year —4 7 (EH#) /A - - - - - (45,288) (45,288) 4,537 (40,751)
Other comprehensive income: PRI TV
- Currency translation differences ISR - - - 2,083 - - 2,083 728 2811
- Realisation of exchange gain upon - R Rk S
disposal and deregistration of W AT Z ISR A
foreign subsidiaries - - - (5,110) - - (5,110) (1,786) (6,896)
Total comprehensive loss 2 EHAH - - - (3,027) - (45,288) (48,315) 3479 (44,836)
Transition to no-par value regime on REZ-NEZAZHBEE
3 March 2014 (Note 28) 0 (Wi 28) 152,049 (152,049) - - - - - - -
Total transactions with equity holders | RN TP T - - - - - - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2014 REZ-WEZA=T-HZ
Bl 167,345 - 51671 34,619 14074 (399,256) (131,547) (91.854) (39,693)

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 131 are an integral part

consolidated financial statements.
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onsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mAaBlaeiEg

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—H ILF/&

2015 2014
“E-RAE S ZF g
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
it i T# 5t T#t
Operating activities KW
Profit/(loss) before taxation KEBL AT Al (R ) 161,209 (39,459)
Adjustments for: i
Finance costs LGN 10 2,641 44,729
Finance income HHBA (352) -
Depreciation and amortization T8 B 8 1,416 2,423
Written off of property, L5 P 3 ~ W B
plant and equipment - 2,764
Gain on disposal of property, GiE-L/E N &' e
plant and equipment ZH (230) -
Exchange gain on disposal of subsidiaries A W A W] 2 M S R (32,124) (6,896)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B A =) 2 A 6 (83,356) (28,530)
Written back of other payables 85 o At B A K T 6 - (1,814)
Revaluation gain on investment properties BEWEZ TR 17 (2,143) -
Provision of impairment of other receivables L Al R ok T 2 e L 9 A 62,154 -
Waiver of part of the amount due to VXLCPL ¥ 4 & 43 FE f VXLCPL
KIH (138,125) -
Changes in working capital BEEEEE
Change in other receivables, Al JRE Wk I > FEAY
prepayments and deposits RIE M ¥ 4 s ) (479,328) (12,642)
Change in other payables and accruals A JRE A 5 TE B
JE it £ 5 W) 3,650 13,916
Net cash used in operations WEEEHZH T (504,588) (25,509)
Income tax paid B} B 5 (3,072) (1,292)
Net cash used in operating activities BEGHIHZHEEH (507,660) (26,801)

B BREREEARAF  2014/2015 5EH#H 53



Consolidated Statement 0

maBlaiiag ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#HHF=H=—+—H IL4F

2015 2014
R RN
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Fif 5 T#ou T# T
Cash flows from investing activities REMB B SHE
Purchase of property, plant and i A\ 3 ~ W BB DA K
equipment and land use right 4 Hb i R (10,217) (1,933)
Cash acquired in acquisition of a subsidiary, WAL — [P R B A ) P A B 4
net of consideration paid (FBEEfHRmE) (74,433) -
Proceed from disposal of property, B 3~ R B Bl 2
plant and equipment Pt 4 K I 578 -
Deposits received for disposal of O W s 85 O Ja 2 ) B 2
equity interest in subsidiaries & - 63,555
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries H 5 B R 4 B 2 BT A5 K 18,634 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from HEWEE (R, iz
investing activities BRewsws ( §§,_4§§) _______ 6 _116_2_2_ B
Cash flows from financing activities il 3 By & Bl A
Issuance of new shares BATH A 337,657 -
Repayment of a loan 8 R —FEEK (269,308)
Advances from a related party KB — % W Z Bk 30,000 -
Repayment of advances from a related party TR 2 8 — 44 BB 7 2 Bk (30,000) -
Proceeds from issuance of promissory notes BAT R LR R Z P R AR 619,316 -
Repayment of promissory notes 8 3 AR b S R (120,000) -
Repayment of loan R 5K - (60,849)
Advances made to an independent third party 4T — & MBI =07 X BaK (15,126) -
Repayment from an independent third party — WL =TT R 15,126 -
Interest paid oA FE (1,200) (24,422)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing Mg EE R (i) Z
activities B4 | _5§§,_4§§ N (_8_512_7_12 B
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReERREFHDZ
WA (6,633) (50,450)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning AR Z Bl B Bl 4 SR
of the year 41,277 90,806
Currency translation differences A s e 55 5% 5 (14) 921
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year RERZHERHE&EHEY 23 34,630 41,277

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 131 are an integral part of these Wi BEE 7 2B 55 2131 B =2 B o T A 4 1 B 95 ik

consolidated financial statements. FzZ—Ha o
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of Crown International Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (i) hotel investment and
operations and (ii) property investment, whilst those of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Suite 902, 9th Floor
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

A special resolution was passed by the Shareholders at an Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 15 July 2014 to change the name of the
Company from “VXL Capital Limited #H# 4@ R2AF” to “Crown
International Corporation Limited 78 BRERSE H A R A R, The

change of company name has become effective from 11 August 2014.

The Company has its shares traded on the mainboard of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Directors consider the
immediate holding company to be Crown Landmark Corporation
(“CLC”), incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its ultimate holding
company to be Oasis Universal Ltd., incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

Dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue

by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2015.

1

‘the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Congglidate
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#HHF=H=—+—H IL4F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment

properties and available-for-sale financial assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4 to the

consolidated financial statements.

(a) Amendments to existing standards and interpretation
effective for the financial year beginning 1 April 2014 but

have no significant impact on, or are not relevant to, the

Group
HKAS 32 Amendment Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
HKAS 36 Amendment Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial

assets
HKERS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment entities
HKAS 27 (2011) Amendment

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  New standards and amendments to existing standards that

are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group

The following new or revised standards and amendments to

standards are relevant to the Group’s operation but are not

effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 April

2014 and have not been early adopted in these consolidated

financial statements:

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 19 (2011) Amendment

HKAS 16 and 38 (Amendment)
HKERS 9

HKERS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendment)

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)
HKFRS 14
HKERS 15

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

HKAS 28 (Amendment)

Annual Improvements Project

Annual Improvements Project

Annual Improvements Project

Disclosure initiative *

Defined benefit plans - employee contributions '

Classification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortization *

Financial instruments *

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation

exception *

Accounting for acquisition of interest in joint
operations -

Regulatory deferral accounts *

Revenue from contracts with customers *

Equity method in separate financial statement *

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor

and its associate or joint venture *

Annual improvements 2010-2012 cycle !

Annual improvements 2011-2013 cycle !

Annual improvement 2012-2014 cycle *

dated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—H ILF/&

2 ERGEHBORMR (4)

2.1 MR HE (4)

(b) AR 23K H AR LE R A 1
RAYZ BT QY Je B 17

ILES
L HE T TR &
W6 5T A BLAR 4 [ 8 YA R
M R — 4 H —H B
b Z AR A [ W A B R AR
B IR R IR AR A BB R R
FLER A -
RGN wE
(BiTk)
BREEASEE  EEEAHE-RA
(ZF-—%) it
(BiTk)
BRGNS ERRERBEZ RS
308 (BT k) T
BRATRERARS MR
il sy R i
S8 FhERE  ZDUMER:
BASIE RS
LEE I
(BTK)
BRITREEAIE WRARETEE
(%) LGt
BEMEREEIRGE BYELEED
BRI ERIRIE FRANRE
BhERAEE  BIMERENZ
(BiTk) i
BRET RIS  RERRAREATR
(BT%) HEATZ MR
HIN 3
L vy ot S < e S 2
BIEERE
YA it S e St
LEES$6
Lp A ZR-CERCR-WE
B REE

SR RERE BA FRA R

2014/2015 %E8; 57



Notes to the Congglidate
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#HHF=H=—+—H IL4F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

1

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning 1 July
2014

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning 1
January 2016

3 Effective for the Group for annual period beginning 1
January 2017

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning 1
January 2018

The Group has commenced the assessment of the impact of
these new standards and amendments to existing standards
but is not yet in a position to state whether they would have
a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
came into operation during the financial year, as a result,
there are changes to presentation and disclosures of certain

information in the consolidated financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to the

end of March 2015.

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values

at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Congglidate
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#HHF=H=—+—H IL4F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combination (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by

HKEFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are

recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill
(Note 2.7). If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly

in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting

policies.
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Notes to the Congglidate
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#HHF=H=—+—H IL4F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries without

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded

in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to the profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the executive directors that

makes strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKS$”),
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where item are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying

cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available for

sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Congglidate
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#HHF=H=—+—H IL4F

2 ERGEBORME (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 AT (B

(c) Group companies (c) ZEEHAE

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation
is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or

loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised

in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the equity

holders of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Hotel properties 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years
Office equipment and machinery 3 to 5 years
Computer and related equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
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Notes to the Consglidated Fi
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HFE=H =+4—H ILF

2 ERGEBORME (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 W€~ W or Bk il (48)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over their expected

useful lives to the Group.

FAETH T L EAAL 327 AR
B 2 Ut P AR T

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and B R T A R WY AR AR R
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 2 B U R R - M AE S8 R AE
o

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than

its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

ik — YL 2 M L e R A
AT I I - ) A O A M
T i % AT e A (B RE2.9) o

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing B 8 75 7% i L i B 45 sk O B
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in profit or MR THI AL < 24 70 1 7 A - Sl % 4 i e
loss. e

2.6 Land use rights 2.6 3 fi i) BE
Land use rights which are prepayment of land leases stated at e £ RE (BP 2 AH 4 BEA AR
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment T ) 42 A 9 B ET A A B E A
losses. Cost represents consideration and directly attributable e IR o AR B =+ 2
transaction costs paid or payable for the rights to use the land for T4z Al R 2 A
periods between 30 and 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights AR B 4 A A8 5 AR o 2
is calculated on the straight-line method over the period of the i P HE 2 8 63 07 L v S ) R 3D )
land use rights. VIH AR
2.7 Intangible assets 2.7 I &
(a) Goodwill (a) FHER
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and T 2 R WA B O B A ) i A
represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the i P A R e U 2
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and A i e ¥ WE 25 4 A e DA AR
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest A W W T 2 A AT e R A WL
in the acquiree over the fair value at the identified net assets W H B 2 1 1 A8 T W

acquired.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(a) Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management

purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the brand level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not

subsequently reversed.

2.8 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as if

they were finance leases.
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Notes to the Consglidated Fin
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HFE=H =+4—H ILF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each of the
end of reporting period by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in profit

or loss.

If the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to being
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group, it is reclassified
as an investment property, measured at fair value at the date of
reclassification and the difference between the fair value and the
net book value of the investment property is recognised in the

other comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill
or intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(CGUgs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment

at each reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held
for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair

value less costs to sell.

2.11 Financial assets

2.11.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purposes
for which the financial assets were acquired. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end of reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as ‘Receivables, prepayments
and deposits’ and ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Congglidate
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#HHF=H=—+—H IL4F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or the Group intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months after the end of

reporting period.

2.11.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as ‘other gains, net’.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as part of other income when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default,

insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

2.13.1Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial

assets that can be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consglidated Fi
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

2.13.1 Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears

or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an

. . . .
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFIBUORBE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 % & E A (4)
213290 0 7% vl B HY B F

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

2.13.2 Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consglidated Fi
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Other receivables

If collection of other receivables is expected in one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as

non-current assets.

Other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less from date of investment and bank

overdrafts.

2.16 Other payables

Other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-

current liabilities.

Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFIBUORBE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
217 fE sk (#)

2.17 Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it

relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready

for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets

is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consglidated Fi
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of
the statement of financial position in the countries where
the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of

amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the date of
the statement of financial position and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

76 Crown International Corporation Limited ~Annual Report 2014/2015

2 ERGHEBORME (4)

2.19 BI Y] Je 9% % Pt 15 Bt (4)

(a)

(b)

B A o 1 B

B S804 B 5 Y G AR A 4y
) B Jag 2 ) % Mgk oy W AL
T e U JE SR A8 WC A\ 2 B KR
R H T E R BT E 2
B st 54 o i i BEB5 e 1) %
R T I > B4 B i A 00 R
il B A Z AR DL o 4 BHLE A T
B R 05 9 T ) 32 Ak 7 B 5
B Z 4 AR A o

AT 1B

A 0 e 2 L

R SIE P Fe B S B8 P B AR - B
B N BB A BLOL A AR A
S 25 A 2 MR A ] A 2
By g 22 WK o SR - A B
Tie W i R A 2 0 A B UE £
RS Tt R 5 ik PR 28 e
AT 5y (36 BEERSE) W
17 5 B o S R B i A
i i 1R < ¥R R R T A AR
IE SiE BT A3 A - A T AR < 8
SIE Jfr 45 666 Y A5 5 H BT C
T SR BOE i - ELBE R A
I9W 08 A P 15 e ¥ B B Bk
SIE Fy 5 6 4 5 495 0 il 2
PR (R BLE) HEAE

AR A T e L E 1 R HAR
AR VT B o M R B da B DL
5 1T 2 T R o



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is
unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only where there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the

temporary difference not recognised.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be

utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consglidated Fi
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

2.21 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the date of the statement of

financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(0

(d)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the government of
the PRC. The retirement scheme contributions are based
on a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’

employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that

has created a constructive obligation.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when the entity
has a detailed formal plan to terminate the employment
of current employees without possibility of withdrawal.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of

the reporting period are discounted to their present value.
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Notes to the Consglidated
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(e) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, known as Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme”). The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. At each end of
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable.
It recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the

remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal

value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities,
as described below. The Group bases its estimates of return on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer,

the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Income from hotel room rental, food and beverage and other

services is recognised when the relevant services are provided.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

Consultancy fee income is recognised in the accounting period in

which the service is rendered.

2.24 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

(a) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consglidated
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Leasing (Continued)

(b) Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost
is charged to the income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases
is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset

and the lease term.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs so that

the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognised.

82 Crown International Corporation Limited Annual Report 2014/2015

2 ERGHEBORME (4)

224 LB ()

(b) MEEAME

H A 55 [ 2 3 26 K8 4 B A
ARl e I T 2 0 3 ~ B B
REHESI L MEMRE -
Al e LR % A AL SR PR 4R 9%
LB W 38 2 o - fE B B (R A
B Ak B ) 2 MR A
A o T3 IR A 39 43 0 16
T i S # F o AH B 2 AH 2 AR
(40 B i & 2 H) 7% 0 A Al
At R 391 HEASF K L < R IR AR
Z RV 43 A R A 2
FEAN B - S A 1 ) A 90 P
A HHE AR
AR 5% il L A 2 0 - R
5o B B B AR 0] B
LY 2 s I s o

225 KR AR AR E &

KAREERAMBEHOEEZF
i T HE 518 2 A e A - e SE
HEEKARTRE RS RA
i 52 S 1 o 7 8 A A B D - T AR
5 3 A B e 4 1 % E B
Rk E o

AR TR MR
S 785 e A ik v B o MR T AR A
IR 2 T R SO BT RE I B
AR S T A - ) e 2 4B A

SR A T AR R > (E A VT R
W 28] 68 5 A i IR AE A £ B B R
FbF ik v 02 % o B R e S WA E
AR 2 g > JU) B Tl Ry



dated Financial Statements (Continued)
A £ WA 25 R M e ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #% £ —F—##F=H="1—H ILF &

3 B JE e A BE
3.1 B0 D B R R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and secks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group has not used any derivative financial instruments to

hedge its risk exposures.

Risk management for the Company and its subsidiaries in the
PRC is carried out by the Executive Committee (“Excom”).
Excom identifies, evaluates and monitors financial risk in close
co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Group
monitors the financial risk continuously to minimise the risks,
such as foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,

interest rate risk and cash management.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in HK dollars and Renminbi
(“RMB”). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk

arising from its investments which are located in the PRC.

As at 31 March 2015, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against HK dollars, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit (2014: post-tax loss) for the year
would have been HK$2.3 million (2014: HK$0.8 million)
lower/higher respectively. The movement in the profit or
loss relates mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains
(2014: gains/losses) on translation of RMB denominated
other receivables and other payables that affect revenues and

other income and costs.
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Notes to the Congglidate
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#ZHF=H=+—H IL4F B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 WEmE bR (F)

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 WA bs & (4)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (a) SPEEE B (4F)
For the translation risk as at 31 March 2015, if RMB had MR R -LE=ZA =1+
strengthened/weakened by 5% against HK dollars, with all H Z M 58 L B ifd & - i A R
other variables held constant, total equity would have been W LW Ot THE W AES %
HK$64.4 million (2014: HK$17.0 million) higher/lower T Fir A G Al 538 9 AR 5 A 5
respectively. R BE 25 48 28050 43 300 84 Ik
4 64,400,000% 76 (=% —
4:17,000,000%78) °
(b) Price risk (b) 1B E B
The Group is exposed to price risk for club debentures, A R A PR R - MR AR
which are held by the Group and classified on the B 5 R D0 AR A 43 S R T
consolidated statement of financial position as available-for- B A O > WA AR T ARz
sales financial assets. The Group maintained club debentures B A S (S TR B o AR 4R [ 2
investments for long-term strategic purpose and the Group’s = B e B R FE AT BT AR
overall exposure to price risk is not significant. FF B i A RS B AR 2
Z A A K o
(c) Credit risk (c) 5B B
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to A 45 A B L B 2 R R
receivables and bank deposits. The exposures to these credit WOk I B SRAT AR o BTk 2 2
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. 5 BB © 2 B Fr A B 4 o
In respect of receivables, the Group closely monitors the AL WK T 5 - AR % O
credit performances and prompt repayments from the B ¥ 5 B AR B B Iy B2 oR 3
counterparties. The Group has policies in place to review the Ti 3K o AS 4 1B A UK R
recoverability of other receivables on an ongoing basis and A G Al 1 Wk I 2z T W el
assess the adequacy of provision for impairment. Further FREE NP AR AR M ) 1 78
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit JE o A B AR 4R R A RE WK
risk arising from receivables, prepayments and deposits T ~ AR R4 2 A5 B
are disclosed in Note 22 to the consolidated financial z—bEByMREGS
statements. VA 265 A B ik 22 P 49 % o
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Aok 7 WA 25 R M e ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £ —F—H#F=H="1—H ILF &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 A Es R B AR B ()

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 WA A bs & (4)
(c) Credir risk (Continued) (c) fFB&mEE (4F)
In respect of bank deposits, the Group has diversified its AT & - AL E A
exposures into different financial institutions. It has policies R B 4y R A ) 2 B
in place to assess the credit standing of the counterparties HE o AR 4 B 5T AR RE OO - %
and financial institutions before the Group invests its assets. Do 7R8I A W - 1 T
S 3 B B 2 1 SR
e 7 4 A
(d) Liquidity risk (d) B & &b
The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources AEBMEBR—FZH X (&
including shareholder’s loan, orderly realisation of short- T JBE SRR ~ LA SR 38 A
term financial assets, receivables and certain assets that the HHERAEAMTEZHERT
Group considers appropriate and advantageous to dispose A 5 B0 B s R ~ R
of. Equity and other long term financing including strategic ARIE B T8 ) e i B &
partnerships, or strategic joint ventures are also considered A o AR [ 3 AT B AS F AR IRE
by the Group in its capital structuring. The Group’s 75 81 [v) I6f 7% B B BE I I Atb R
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of TR (BT SR W P B R
funding and flexibility through the use of the Group’s HORME A A ) o ARE M
available cash and other interest-bearing loans. ZHEREBMENAREEZ
EE R EN DS
AE B 4 JiE A 1 R 9 1 2 TR
The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve A AR R U Bl e A > B
which comprises borrowing facilities and cash and cash PR B i BEAF T
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow. 0 - 0 Y < £ B 9 A K
B DL R B4 K Bl E Y
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities TERIIMBHEHEHZESH
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining B H Z 5 5 3] A 4R 1
period from the date of the consolidated statement 2 T s £ R B B30 AL
of financial position to the contractual maturity date. BT Z Mo RN KEZ
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual R R A A R G BB IR
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months o R BUE B AT
approximate their carrying balances, as the impact of i e NS Bl e ]
discounting is not significant. FUHR I A5 R M A o
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AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#ZHF=H=+—H IL4F B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3 B ke B (4)

3.1 JA B JE B R R (4)
(d) 5 & &K (4)

Within Between Between
lyear 1and2years 2and5 years Total
4N — WA WEHE HGt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T AR T T
As at 31 March 2015 /A s T
SR=tR
Borrowing and interest i 3% B A B A 3k
payment 512,500 - - 512,500
Other payables and accruals A JRE A 3 T B
L EiN=N 36,258 — - 36,258
548,758 - - 548,758
As at 31 March 2014 o F A
SRR
Borrowing K 407,429 - - 407,429
Other payables and accruals A JRE A 3 T B
L EiN=Ni 69,149 - - 69,149
476,578 - - 476,578
(e) Interest rate risk (e) FIZ/E Fg
The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits 7 5 M A 2 KR 2R 8 SR AT AF
and borrowings. The Group monitors and limits its interest R B R o AR 5 T 7 0 A P O
rate risk exposure through management of maturity profile, - EWALG R e K
currency mix and choice of fixed and floating interest rates. B3 > B4 % R ) L)
JEL B o
Apart from bank balances which carry interest at prevailing B 38 47 R R B 2 ST 4
rates, the Group has no significant interest-bearing asset. BRAD > A5 5] i i T ORI EVE
Borrowings bearing interest at fixed rates expose the B o 3 [ E R 5B Z AE %A
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group manages A 55 [ 7R 32 AP AEL ) 2 Jl e
its interest rate exposure of borrowings with a focus on A S5 [H] 95 A0 B TR R U A A
reducing the overall cost of debt. 8 5 W AR 4 B A ik 2 B R
L B o
The Group currently does not use any interest rate A Al H W A AR T A
derivative contracts or other financial instruments to hedge RMAEA L S AT B T ]
against its interest rate risk exposure. 3 i I i R 52 2 ) R g
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—HILF/&

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 A Es R B AR B ()

(Continued)
3.2 & AR b A PR

3.2 Capital risk management

The capital structure of the Group consists of owner’s equity
and debts, which include borrowings, cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company which

comprises the issued share capital and accumulated losses.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for
shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between
higher shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to total
capital ratio. The gearing ratios at 31 March 2015 and 2014 were

as follows:

A I 2 AR A A B N E
A R 2 % R - L v B K - B
G T B4 S AE M DA B A O )R A
FEA N MEAN RERS - T A< 2> vi) A 25
AN AR HE 25 BN B 4% © B AT R AR
Fe Rt o

A A B AR 2 AR A R A
A T AT B 7 e A T R 3 T
Be S5 AR B 2 B2 P 1= o A SR
VB S0 A o A B AR A - DA
Tl PR IO A B AR R B
SRCIE] e (R HE B B R A KK )
SRET i 2 AR DL Ae Z A 25 K
DR I 2 ) A5 P 407 - Sl PR 6 19
DU ) T A A A A

A S AL 0 A 5 3 I A
ZHREREAR R R —HAER
“E-WEEZAZFHZEAR
AR

2015 2014

SR FAE SFE N

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T 0 Tt

Total borrowing (Note 25) 1 3% R (B 3E25) 500,753 407,429
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W Bl R B & EMEY (34,630) (41,277)
Net debt 5 3 A 466,123 366,152
Total equity HE 45 48 766,097 (39,693)
Total capital g AR 1,232,220 326,459
Net debt/total capital ratio B FE S E AR E 37.8% 112.2%
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#ZHF=H=+—H IL4F B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 W b AE PR ()
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 2P Z Al 5t

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair TERBEATEIIRZME TR

value, by valuation method. The different levels have been YR 7 B AT 240 M7 o AT g 4%

defined as follows: REWMTF :

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical . HH IR B A B A R G R T
assets or liabilities (level 1). ZHE(RBHE) (F—

&) o

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 . Bk 58 — AP wE K 2 oA A
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly A B & A A AR A\
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) WO (BPAE Z (8 A% ) i
(level 2). ¥ (BPAT A= B B ) B0 i 45

(=) -

*  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on - HHEESKAMEZGAEY
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) Sif Jf HL 7 Wl B T 4 i (B
(level 3). A B W AEY) (B2

;) o
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that TERBEBIHINR=HAH=+—HAREH
are measured at fair value at 31 March: A FHEFIBZEERAME:
Level 2 Total
Bk ok
HK$ 000 HK$’000
i it

As at 31 March 2015 W_F—HE=ZH=+—H

Assets &

Available-for-sale financial assets club wl Ik B B R R

debenture 1,128 1,128

As at 31 March 2014 R _E-ME=ZH=1+—H

Assets &

Available-for-sale financial assets club Wl g B T R T A

debenture 1,128 1,128
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—HILF/&

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 A Es R B AR B ()

(Continued)
3.3 P2 Ak (4)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an

arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

include:

. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments;

e Other techniques, such as inputs from recent arm’s length

transaction or discounted cash flow analysis, are used to

determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 for both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note
2 above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date of the statement
of financial position, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are disclosed below.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(a)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
depreciation rates for its property, plant and equipment. The
Group will revise the depreciation rates where useful lives
are different to previous estimation, or it will write off or
write down the value of those assets which are technically

obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or

sold.

(b) Income taxes

It is the Group’s policy to recognise deferred tax assets for
unused tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all
available evidence. Recognition primarily depends on the
Group’s expectation of future taxable profit that will be
available against which tax losses can be utilised. The details

of the assessment are disclosed in Note 26.
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dated Financial Statements (Continued)
Aok 7 WA 25 R M e ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £ —F—H#F=H="1—H ILF &

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 HOK & EHEEF A B
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued) (%)

4.2 Critical accounting judgement 4.2 R & 5F A B
(a) Impairment of assets (a) BEWMHE

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill or A 4 1 5 A A 4 0 A B T

assets that have indefinite useful lives have suffered any 5 4R ) 2 P R RO A R

impairment. Other assets are reviewed for impairment O Y BB AF o JF At ¥ 7 D

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that Bl # ks BR B Y B AL > BB

the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable B W A R A AT e e

amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash- AR > AT DA B T o B

generating unit has been determined based on value-in-use o B4 e AR B AL 2 AT U e 4

calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates, RS ALIRAE B AR5 o % 5%

such as discount rates, future profitability and growth rates. AR EM N Z A R E
BI&R S RARBFGE N KR K
Ao

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 BRSNS BER
INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment 74 55 1 B 7 S 1 1) R RN (B
information based on the regular internal financial information BATHE S ) ol 2 A B 5 R
reported to the chief operating decision-maker, namely the executive S 43 I B A S 43 HEDRE - T % 5 TR Y
directors, for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s BEORETAE EAT e A 4 ] S AL,
business components and for their review of the performance of 8 43 2 B P43 WO A MR 5K - NI A3t A S
those components. The business components in the internal financial 58] % 5 AL R 43 2 B B o 1) AT
information reported to the executive directors are principally engaged W Z TR S B R PR SR AL 4

in (i) property investment and (ii) hotel operations. BB )P EBE 5 T (i) I ) 2 o

(a) Analysis of revenue by category (a) ¥&BRI 5 M 2 Wik

2015 2014

“RffE RN

HKS$’000 HK$°000

T T#T

Turnover R

— Revenue from hotel operations — 0 i 36 B W A - 896

— Rental income —MakA 3,632 5,085

3,632 5,981
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Notes to the Consglidated Fi
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

BRB B wE R (4

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) 41 #FE KL

(b) Segment information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit which is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.

Summarised details of the business segments are as follows:

i) the hotel operations segment is engaged in hotel rental and

food & beverage business;

ii)  the property investment segment is investment in properties;

and

iii) the unallocated segment comprises operations other than
those specified in (a) and (b) above and includes that of the

corporate office.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, land use rights and construction
in progress. Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, land use rights, construction in progress,
goodwill and receivables. Segment liabilities comprise borrowings,
deferred tax liabilities and operating liabilities. Unallocated assets
and liabilities mainly represent assets and liabilities used by the
corporate office, which cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis

to any segment. They include items such as corporate borrowings.

Segment result represents the profit/(loss) resulted by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs,
finance income, finance cost, fair value gain on investment
properties, release of available-for-sale financial assets reserve
upon disposal, impairment loss reclassified from available-for-sale

financial assets reserve and taxation.
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dated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £ —F—H#F=H="1—H ILF &

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 BEXERSWER (H)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) 73 ¥BE K (4)
MEDR TR %=
A=A H IR - S 533
B4 2 4 ¥ S 00 T T R DA B

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The segment results, depreciation and amortisation, and capital
expenditure based on reportable segments for the years ended 31

March 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

A B 2o
Total for
Property Hotel reportable
investment operations segments  Unallocated ~ The Group
R
MmERE 0 1 2 AEME  RAEEH A%
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T SRV T
For the year ended BE_Z-HHE
31 March 2015 SR=EF—HIEEE
Segment revenue: I3 W W i ¢
Sale to external customers AR P HE 3,632 - 3,632 - 3,632
Segment results 3k 2,377 32,908 35,285 128,213 163,498
Finance income B WA 1 22 223 129 352
Finance costs TRl A - - - (2,641) (2,641)
Profit before taxation W B 46 ) 2,378 33,130 35,508 125,701 161,209
Taxation B (536) (5:879) (6,415) - (6,415)
Profit for the year MR 1,842 27,251 29,093 125,701 154,794
Other segment information Ao 2y 70 & R
Depreciation and amortisation R Ve 1] (188) (235) (423) 997) (1,420)
Fair value gain on investment BEMEZ A FEEN
properties 2,143 - 2,143 - 2,143
Additions to RE
- Property, plant and S /EN YT
equipment 3,404 - 3,404 6,867 10,271

SR RERE BA FRA R
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Notes to the Consglidated *
55 B S0 S e % B R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

(%)

Note: Hotel operations segment included hotels which have not been in

operations.
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5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 BREBMaEER (4)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) FEER (4)
Total for
Property Hotel reportable
investment operations segments  Unallocated The Group
A
WERE G AEWER RAEEA PN
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR FEE T PR TEE
For the year ended BREZZ N4
31 March 2014 ZAZF—HIREE
Segment revenue: g 18
Sale to external customers HINE P81 5,085 896 5,981 - 5,981
Segment results ViR EY 976 15,344 16,320 (11,414) 4,906
Finance income IR TION 18 325 343 21 364
Finance costs A (2,081) (15,364) (17,445) (27,284) (44,729)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRALHT (B4 ) /A (1,087) 305 (782) (38,677) (39,459)
Taxation B (229) (1,063) (1,292) - (1,292)
Loss for the year G (1,316) (758) (2,074) (38,677) (40,751)
Other segment information ~ H-Alt 4} & & B
Depreciation and amortisation P78 e (157) (2,120) (2,277) (146) (2,423)
Written back of other payables 48§ [ 3 Al Ji 1 3k I - 1,814 1,814 - 1,814
Written off of property, plant S 2E ~ W5 S %
and equipment - 2,764 2,764 - 2,764
Additions to WNE
- Property, plant and S /EN Y&
equipment - 1,924 1,924 9 1,933

FEFRE = 48 60 0 43 0 4 4 2 S B 2

i o



dated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ao W 5 AR M (f)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £ —F—H#F=H="1—H ILF &

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 BREBRaEER (4)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) HEER (H)
Information about major customers Vil EX- I 7.
Revenue of approximately HK$2.1 million and approximately #12,100,0009% ¢ & #11,500,000%
HK$1.5 million (2014: approximately HK$2.4 million and JC (= — P4 : £)2,400,000% 70
approximately HK$2.0 million) were derived from Customer A J #12,000,000% 70 ) Z W25 4 ) 2k
and Customer B in the property investment segment respectively. BYERESUHZEPRPRES
No other single customer contributed 10% or more to the Lo RBEF—HER_F—N
Group’s revenue for both the years ended 31 March 2015 and FE=H =4 H R A > BRI A
2014, W% P 2 BN AR B W25 10%
;DL o
The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable segments as RE-F—TFER_F—NFE=H
at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: Z1—H R A S E S 2 5
O B
Total for
Property Hotel reportable
investment operations segments  Unallocated The Group
&5
MmERE 0 1 2 AubME R4 EEH A%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T Tx
At 31 March 2015 /A S K3
=A=+—H
Segment assets R 1,743,451 - 1,743,451 622,346 2,365,797
Cash and cash equivalents BeRB &L MY 1,167 - 1,167 33,463 34,630
Total assets B A 1,744,618 - 1,744,618 655,809 2,400,427
Segment liabilities AEAE 1,084,813 - 1,084,813 48,764 1,133,577
Borrowing fii - - - 500,753 500,753
Total liabilities AR A 1,084,813 - 1,084,813 549,517 1,634,330
At 31 March 2014 i B — A
ZH=+—H
Segment assets vidi) g3 165,793 292,420 458,213 1,708 459,921
Cash and cash equivalents e kB eSS 1,189 33,441 34,630 6,647 41,277
Total assets GEME 166,982 325,861 492,843 8,355 501,198
Segment liabilities oL 46,589 85,091 131,680 1,782 133,462
Borrowings fii 21,754 160,627 182,381 225,048 407,429
Total liabilities AFAH 68,343 245,718 314,061 226,830 540,891

SR RERE BA FRA R
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Notes to the Congglidate
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014
and non-current assets as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 based on

geographical area are as follows:

BREBELSHER ()

(b) 4 #EE B (%)

ACHR A 7 8 v B R S o K
FEEEF-LER RN
FZHA =4 H kAR R [
gy 2 Wak DA RO ZF AR e
FMEZ] =+ — H

SZIERBEEW R
2015 2014
ZE R ZE N
HK$’000 HK$’000
T oL Fuoo
Revenue W £

Hong Kong P = -
PRC o g 3,632 5,981
3,632 5,981

Non-current assets IR B & e
Hong Kong i 2,656 8
PRC o g 1,742,904 198,027
1,745,560 198,035

Revenue is categorised based on the jurisdiction in which the
customers are located. Non-current assets are categorised based on

where the assets are located.

96 Crown International Corporation Limited ~Annual Report 2014/2015

W 35 ¥ % P T AE W 5 HE O 4T 2
T A T S 4 P A ML AT
i



OTHER GAINS, NET

dated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—HILF/&

6 o fth & A A

2015 2014
NS S ¥ S S 111 K4 S
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T #t T
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 31) 8 BB 2 W) Z B
(FfE31) 83,356 28,530
Compensation received from termination of HE 4% Lk WA A 3 WO - Al
acquisition of property - 1,145
Exchange gains on disposal and deregistration of B T R G A B A F 2
foreign subsidiaries, net [ 58, 2 1) {3 A 32,124 6,896
Gain on disposal of property, B 3 R MRk A 2 LA
plant and equipment 230 -
Consultancy fee income JBELRY A 1,763 -
Written back of other payables 5% 1] L A JRE A 35K I - 1,814
Others At 2 F) 95 56
117,568 38,441
STAFF COSTS 7 R B AR
The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all TR AR B 2 R B A - B A

Directors’ emoluments (Note 14(a)).

MR ZME (FiE14a) °

2015 2014
“® G %N
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Directors’ fees EHEEE 2,166 900
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 7 4 B I Atb i 391 0 L A A 5,384 8,396
Provision of unutilised annual leave A B P 4 A 48 19 22
Pension costs (Note i) B A AR (B 5ED) 78 87
Social security costs (Note ii) AL PR R AS (B ki) 423 977
8,070 10,382
Notes: Fff 5t -
i) There were no forfeited contributions during the years ended 31 March i) BEZZ-HER_F-NE=H
2015 and 2014. =t H kAR BN A A B K o
ii)  All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC excluding i) ARAEZPE (ABREEE) KHE A

Hong Kong who are PRC citizens participate in employee social security
plans enacted in the PRC, including pension, medical and other welfare
benefits, which are organised and administrated by the government

authorities. According to the relevant regulations, the Group contributes

on a monthly basis based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the labour and

social welfare authorities. Contributions to the plans are expensed as

incurred.

W BT oy R R B 3 2 B
W AT Z AR E AL DR R B o R%
FH B0 RF A R 0 A > A LA IR AR
A~ e B K R A o 35 TR B AR -
AEEGEHARBREAHEZETHS
V17 % T B A 4 1 48 B 1 o Bk (4
B AT BRI o p it B AR
R A N S 4
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Notes to the Congglidate F
A BmENE (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#ZHF=H=+—H IL4F B

8 OPERATING PROFIT

8 RE A

2015 2014
- Sl - =Sl 11122
HK$’000 HK$’000
il Tilhse
Operating profit is arrived at after charging/ al S AL e ) IR
(crediting): gk (A -
Legal and professional fee VY S 4,239 384
Consultancy fee BT 1 5,922 2,274
Depreciation and amortisation Ve R ey 1,416 2,423
Auditor’s remuneration 12 B F T 4
— Audit services — %R 1,286 1,522
— Non-audit services — TR 150 150
Net exchange gain [ 52, 28 ) v (167) (273)
Provision for impairment of other receivables L Al JE WAL Ak L R AR 62,154 -
Written off of property, plant and equipment L E L Y e ] = 2,764
Office rental WA R4 3,753 1,908
Business travel expenses TR 25 25 i BH 3 1,544 3,363
9 FINANCE INCOME 9 WMHRA
2015 2014
R -RE ZE g
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Bank interest income RAT A B A 352 364
10 FINANCE COSTS 10 @l A
2015 2014
R R4 ZE g
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Interest on loan from VXLCPL VXLCPLE # 2 ) & - 44,729
Interest on note payable A 5245 2 7] 8. 1,957 -
Loan arrangement fee LSS di 684 -
2,641 44,729
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ated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B ARk MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—HILF/&

OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME 11 HipJERBERA
2015 2014
—E—HE —FE g
HK$’000 HK$’000
TilE T8
Waiver of part of the amount due to VXLCPL B A 43 A VXLCPLEK IH 138,125 -

On 27 June 2014, VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited
(“VXLCPL”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and the former ultimate holding company of the Company and the
Company entered into an agreement, under which VXLCPL has agreed
to unconditionally and irrevocably waive part of the outstanding
borrowing as at 31 March 2014 due to VXLCPL amounting to
approximately HK$138,125,000. The remaining loan amount of
approximately HK$269,304,000 was settled during the Year.

TAXATION CHARGE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax (FY 2014: Nil) has been made
for the year as the Group has no assessable profit for the Year. Taxation
on PRC profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit

for the Year at the rates of taxation in the PRC.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represents:

12

WF—MEANHZFLEH VXL
Capital Partners Corporation Limited
(T'VXLCPL | > — [ i 3% o JE & 7F 5
FE O Z 2 W] > R AR A R Z W R
5 B > W] ) BAR 24 ] T L i o BRI
VXLCPLIF] 7 JIE 4 A2 B 7S w4 [o] 1 35 4
RoRWUEZA=Z+—H2ZE®AR
1 42 HE AT VXLCPLAR 3k £7138,125,000 %
JG o B AR B £9269,304,0009 76 TR AR
Vb A BE PRV A

B T 32 i

FH T 2% 5% [ 77 A B B 4 B S 4 M R i
A > WO AR BE 3 S8 9 A ) 45 BEAR
B (% DA BRI ¢ ) o P
i ) 2 A5 I AR R v 2 B AR A
7% S B 4 B R v A A

HAEEMWERNCHBRZBLIH&H
fg:

2015 2014

“EB-RE T NE

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt THoT

Current tax — PRC B 300 5 3 — v R 5,879 1,292
Deferred taxation 5 7E B IH 536 -
6,415 1,292

SR RERE BA FRA R
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Notes to the Consolidated Fin:
A MBmEMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

12 TAXATION CHARGE (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before taxation differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

12 BiIE X (%)

ACHE B R BT R A (s 4R 2 Bl HE
90 P Ao B 28 W) SRARZ MR 3 B R

applicable to the results of the consolidated companies as follows: At HZ BB 2RI
2015 2014
ZEF—h4 - S 112
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Profit/(loss) before income taxation W B A BE R RE A (5 4R) 161,209 (39,459)

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to 298 17 4% R B [ i ) 2

profits in the respective jurisdictions HHBLRE 2 BLE 24,144 (5,029)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT 0 B 32 2 B % 21,557 9,838
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue S B UR 2 Z BlJE 2 (40,996) (6,063)
Deferred tax assets not recognised AW TR 2 3 i B IE 1,710 2,546
Taxation charge BhIE % 6,415 1,292

13 BASIC AND DILUTED PROFIT/(LOSS)
PER ORDINARY SHARE FOR PROFIT/
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

(a) Basic profit/(loss) per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the
profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

(a) FFBE B AEARR S (ER) T
PAAAE A O ) B 2 35 AN HE A
WA (s 5 B DA B 847 3 8 it

year. ZINHE S RS
2015 2014
R fAE E N
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to AN T HEE N BEAS AN
owner of the Company, HK$’000 A, (EH) - T 155,067 (45,288)
Weighted average number of OB A7 5 48 B 2 n B T 24
ordinary shares in issue 1,949,521,212 1,529,600,200
Basic profit/(loss) per ordinary share, A B 9 B HE AR R )
HK cents (KE1#8) - w4l 7.95 (2.96)

(b) The calculation of diluted profit/(loss) per ordinary share is based
on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares used, which is the same for calculating basic profit/(loss)
per ordinary share above, as the Company did not have any
dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from share options for
the two years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014.
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dated Financial Statements (Continued)
Aok 7 WA 25 R M e ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £ —F—H#F=H="1—H ILF &

14 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14 FFEERBEHENE

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EHME
The remuneration of every Director and the Chief Executive is set HHERERBESITBANERZHM
out below: mE:

WE-B-AEZA=+—H L
g

For the year ended 31 March 2015:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
a person’s services as a director, whether of

the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
BB\ DL O3 R ik e T
(A i P A 2 ) s G ) 7 4f )

Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Other benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salaries benefits** scheme Total
1 1)
B IRH A
a4 i
HAEMY FiE e HEAe 2 fiEa ki
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T# T T T# T T
Executive Directors S
MENG Jin Long (a) H e () 241 19 - - 260
LIAO Pin Tsung (b) JB i &3 (b) 1,175 = - - 1,175
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei () H#f# 4 (o) - 466 39 3 508
Non-executive Director FPTESE
LIU Hong Shen (d) BIALE ) 250 - - - 250
Independent WL EF
Non-executive Directors
LONG Tao (d) () 167 - - - 167
REN Guo Hua (d) LB (d) 167 - - - 167
CHEN Fang (d) Bt (d) 167 = = = 167
2,167 485 39 3 2,694

SR RERE BA FRA R
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Notes to the Congglidéte "
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors for the

14 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

year ended 31 March 2014 were as follows:

14 # 3 i 5068 B T <
(%)

(a) HHME ()

BER-WE=ZHA=+—HILF
JEOAT SN A E R 2T

Employer’s

contribution

to retirement

Other benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salaries benefits** scheme Total
1R £
BARHER
Al 3 A
HHEL M e bR Z K o
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Executive Directors iTES
Datuk LIM Chee Wah (¢) & BB () - - - - -
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei () K #f# 4 (o) - 2,189 540 15 2744
Independent WL EHATEF

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Alan Howard o A e 2 KA (o)

SMITH, J.P. (¢) 300 - - - 300
Mr. David YU Hon To (c) il # BE 5 4 (o) 300 - - - 300
Mt. SOO Ying Pooi (c) R M 28 A2 () 300 - - - 300

900 2,189 540 15 3,644

*ok

Other benefits include housing allowance.
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14 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Appointed on 27 May 2014 as Non-executive Director and re-

designated as an Executive Director on 19 September 2014.

(b)  Appointed on 27 May 2014 an resigned on 31 March 2015.

(c)  Resigned on 27 May 2014.

(d) Appointed on 27 May 2014.

The Company’s Executive Directors represent all of the
Company’s Chief Executives. Accordingly, no separate disclosure
in respect of the remuneration of the Chief Executives is made in

the financial statements.

No emoluments were paid to any Director as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office during the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

ed Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B ARk MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—HILF/&

14 # 3 J i #0584
(%)

(a) HHME (4)

fif i

(@ REF-MWELH - TLA%E
ERIERATER R —F 1
FIATIUH LR PATE S -

by MR-F—WEHHA - +EH#EER
R —F—HE=ZA=+—
H BT o

(00 MZF—WM4EHAZ+LHE
ﬁo

d) RoF—WNEHA+EH#EER
ﬁo

Aoy T AT ST A A W R B
BN B o P - T 5 A P ol
FAT R AT B Z #H -

BEZF-AERZF-NE=
H = kAR B > A4 7] i 4 1)
GRUE S SRR RULE Y Py
e 55 I A A 55 0 S A A 4 g
Z B Jh < A oy T A

A2 VRO SR AR B I S BT S AR
) B o T B A K A
FLJ 4 R B A AT ] g T4 AR
BZALMTERE 5y~ R R A H
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Notes to the Congglidate
A BmENE (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

14 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

(b) Five highest paid individuals

14 # 3 s 408 P e i 4
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (#8)
(Continued)

(b) LARE#HANL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AREEREEILAREHALE
Group for the year comprise 1 director and 4 employees (2014: F—ERFARNARER (2N
same). The details of the emoluments payable to the 4 employees AR M) o 4F 9 HE A % Y 44 IR B
(2014: same) during the year are presented below: (D4 ) Z M awkil 2
FIE
2015 2014
“F R ZFNE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Filioe Tl
Salaries and other short-term employee Wt 4 B At e Y 1 B
benefits 1,162 1,701
Pension costs — defined contribution plan TRAR 4 AR — 5 A kT 56 30
1,218 1,731
Number of individuals
A
2015 2014
—F R RN
Emoluments band T < i 2l
HK$1 - HK$500,000 19 78 — 500,000% 70 3 3
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 75 —1,000,000% 70 1 1
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dated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—HILF/&

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 3K ~ W5 B i
Office
equipment Computer
Hotel Furniture and  and related Motor
properties  and fixtures machinery ~ equipment vehicles Total
] HHE R
WiEmE  GRREE 3 ] T T Y

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
T#7 T# T#7 T#7 T#7 T#7

Cost WA

Ac 1 April 2014 REF—WENH—H 91,486 7,044 1,620 6,301 3,383 109,834

Additions wE = 471 3,737 155 5,909 10,272

Disposals & (91,322) (2,080) (613) (1,482) (5,073) (100,570)
Exchange difference [fE i, 2% 4 (164) 2 7 7 2 (146)
At 31 March 2015 R-F-HEZA=Z+—H = 5,437 4,751 4,981 4,221 19,390

Accumulated depreciation Bt

Ac 1 April 2014 REF—WENH—H - 6,874 1,023 6,194 2,703 16,794

Charge for the year ERBE = 208 214 61 784 1,267
Written back on disposals 1 1 488 e = (1,697) (610) (1,345) (1,811) (5,463)
Exchange difference e 2% 4 - 2 1 7 1 11

At 31 March 2015 R-F-HEZA=Z+—H = 5,387 628 4917 1,677 12,609

Net book value I T ¥

At 31 March 2015 R-F—HEZA=Z+—H = 50 4,123 64 2,544 6,781

Cost AR

Ac 1 April 2013 REZF—=4#NH—H 201,909 8,495 6,371 6,188 4,202 227,165

Additions wE 15 - 1,111 26 781 1,933

Disposals & - - (205) (5) (1,650) (1,860)
Reclassified as assets held for sale EHAB AR ELEEE (114,182) (1,583) (5,766) (5) (12) (121,548)
Exchange difference 3t 2% 3 3,744 132 109 97 62 4,144

At 31 March 2014 REF—NE=ZA=1+—H 91,486 7,044 1,620 6,301 3,383 109,834

Accumulated depreciation Bt

Ac 1 April 2013 REZF—=4#NH—H 2,552 8,087 6,018 2,841 3,825 23,323

Charge for the year A B - 166 512 505 306 1,489

Wiitten back on disposals i B IR 4 el - - (205) 2,817 (1,430) 1,182

Reclassified as assets held for sale EHNEAHEERERRE (2,678) (1,503) (5,400) (5) (11) (9,603)
Exchange difference i 2% 3 126 124 104 36 13 403

At 31 March 2014 REZF—NE=ZA=+—H - 6,874 1,023 6,194 2,703 16,794

Net book value I T ¥ £

At 31 March 2014 REZF—NE=ZH=+—H 91,486 170 597 107 680 93,040
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Notes to the Congglidéte '
A BmENE (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HE=H =+4—H ILF

16 LAND USE RIGHTS 16

The Group’s interests in land use rights, which represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book values, are analysed as

-t 1 £ i HE

ACEE I b M0 A A AR (FR T A AL
o R R B R i ) S AT E

follows:
2015 2014
ZE R ZFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl T
Cost A
At 1 April W A—H 6,937 59,092
Disposal & (7,075) -
Reclassified to assets held for sale EH B ERERE = (53,926)
Exchange difference I 5t 2% 3 138 1,771
At 31 March R=E=HA=1+—H - 6,937
Accumulated amortization Bty
At 1 April W A—H 1,592 7,770
Charge for the year AE B X 149 934
Written back on disposals H B IR 33 (] (1,859) -
Reclassified to assets held for sale W E LT EREEE = (7,139)
Exchange difference [ 58, 25 % 118 27
At 31 March R=H=1+—H - 1,592
Net book value W ThI 5 A
At 31 March W=H=1+—H - 5,345
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ed Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B ARk MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—HILF/&

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 HEPHE
2015 2014
—FHE CFWE
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Ti#n THT
At 1 April WHH—H 98,348 128,405
Addition wE 1,571,791 -
Reclassified to assets held for sale B R B A = (32,405)
Increase in fair value charged to profit and loss R 2 40 B Z 2 (E 3G 2,143 -
Exchange difference [ 5, 2 A 129 2,348
At 31 March REA=+—H 1,672,411 98,348
The Group’s property interest held under operating lease to earn A 5 T AR 0 A LB R A DAL 4 2
rentals is measured using the fair value model. The following is a list of VI SERERR T IR A A AR 5 8 o A
investment properties as at 31 March 2015: FHE=ZA=Z1THZREWEHHE
U
Property Description and Tenure
7ES if 17 B A
Zhuoyue Building, The property, i KB (Zhuoyue Building), comprises a 16-storey commercial building built over a
Kunlun Main Street West, 1-storeybasement, completed in about 1994, erected on a parcel of land with a registered site area of

Bayuquan District, Yingkou City, approximately 2,393.74 sq.m. It is located at the junction of Kunlun Main Street West and Yinggang

Liaoning Province, the PRC Road, in Yingkou City, Liaoning Province.

i M (RBRE ) G5 — g MR b2 1608 i m SEME T > Y — JUJL M AR AT AROR T - R RS

BERE O — gk 1 3 8 T R 02,393.74°F R Z M b o RE A AL TR S B T B v K R OB

ft £ e [ AR o

EE PNy

LV YN The 1/F to 16/F of the property has a gross floor area of approximately 10,740 sq.m. (excluding
basement and rooftop) while the basement of the property has a gross floor area of approximately 720
$q.m..
I 1M Z WA 210,740°F 5k (R GIEHE R K G ) - 1 %4 5 R 2 3 5
WA R 720 5 K o

The land use rights of the property were granted for a term expiring on 24 March 2051 for

commercial use.

GYRER LG AEEE "R FEEA N H Rk RS
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Notes to the Congglidate
A BmENE (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#ZHF=H=+—H IL4F B

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 BE K (41
Property Description and Tenure
i SR
Daxing Hao Yuan The property, Daxing Hao Yuan (2 BZE3) (formerly known as “Zhongshan Plaza” (1 Ll %
(formerly known as %) ), comprises 2 blocks of 27-storey residential buildings built over a 4-level retail podium and a
“Zhongshan Plaza”), 2-level basement car park, with superstructure works completed in about 2013, erected on a parcel
No. 69 Zhongshan of land with a registered site area of approximately 10,533.00 sq.m. It is located on the northern side
Third Road, of Zhongshan Third Road at its junction with Xingzhong Road, in a central area near Lihe Plaza
East District, in East District, Zhongshan City. Developments in the area mainly comprise residential, office and
Zhongshan City, commercial developments with some 5-star hotels. As advised, the property has a total gross floor area
Guangdong Province, of approximately 90,308.41 sq.m. (including 11,172.25 sq.m. for basement and 3,184.57 sq.m. for
the PRC other facilities).
i M CEREEE (R [ LB ) ) BAGER DY g e 2245 7 55 S 1 i o o o B 355 b 2 T i
R A RRAEEET > LEWEDR SR - AR T B R iRk R R14110,533.00
H iy i Pk Z At b o % S AR L T R L = DA (B o = R A
ORI L) = B 69 9% ) WA AR o BN Z B EHE B EAREET  BEE AR RREA UL BRI R

WL (RIAR T ]) A - B i 2 MR S AR 40 4590,308.41°F 5 ok (B G HbE11,172.25°F 5 ok o 3
fin 3 i 3,184.57°F- Fi k) o

The land use rights of the property have been granted for a term expiring on 20 January 2062 for

commercial and residential use.

GERR WG RAEEE A A A 2RI EEEEE AR

The fair value measurement information for the investment properties R4 A v U 5 B A HE SR 13 SR A PR A
in accordance with HKFRS 13 as at 31 March 2015 is set out below. MER_F-TE=ZHA=Z+T—HZAF
fEFH B EORHR S I o
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dated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—HILF/&

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 L&MW (4)
Quoted prices
in active Significant Significant
markets for  other observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
I HipERZ BRZ
T i 5 AT AW B
ZHifH WY LN 3
(%—#%) (%) (%=#%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T#T T#T TH#T
As at 31 March 2015 REZF-HE=ZA=+—H
— Investment properties - REMH = 1,672,411 =
As at 31 March 2014 REZF-NE=ZA=+—H
— Investment properties - REWE - 98,348 -
There were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and 3 during the year. AR B — AR~ B A B AR = A T 3
3% o
Level 2 fair values of completed investment properties have been T BB 258 AN T — R
generally derived using the sales comparison approach. Sales prices of JH 8 65 L kA5t o FEM0 AL b [ 2 W] L
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences B R B HETIRBY RN EEER
in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input into R FEAT IR - ARy Bl by
this valuation approach is price per square foot. R N WOk B F T W B o
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year. AF Al 4B 500G I 208 5 ) o

(a) Valuation basis (a) A A 5k 4E

As at 31 March 2015, the fair value of the investment properties PR -DE=EA=+H AR
located in Zhongshan, PRC and Yingkou, PRC have been arrived gl R s T
on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by Peak Vision Z T AE 4 ) DA 8 R AN AR A
Appraisals Limited (2014: Nil) and RHL Appraisal Limited W (R YA ) Kok R AT RE
(2014: same), independent qualified professional valuers not EREMARAR (ZF—U4E: M
connected to the Group respectively. The valuation was arrived at W] ) (B AR A VB RO € R o o S
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar RSB EAN (AT ) A W H AT 2 A%
properties at similar location. AR 2 AR 35 o A ME TS 2 7% B KA
YR G R 2 T G AR
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Notes to the Consolidate

Ak 1 W 25 R M ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#ZHF=H=+—H IL4F B

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Leasing arrangements

Investment properties located in Yingkou, PRC are leased to
tenants under long-term operating leases with rentals payable
monthly. Investment properties located in Zhongshan, PRC have

not been leased out.

As at 31 March 2015, investment properties located in
Zhongshan, PRC amounted to approximately HK$1,571,791,000
(2014: Nil) are held by a subsidiary with a business model to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
The investment properties located in Yingkou, PRC amounted
to approximately HK$100,620,000 (2014: approximately
HK$98,348,000) are held by a subsidiary and expected to
be recovered entirely through sale. The Group has measured
the deferred tax relating to the temporary differences of these
investment properties using the tax rates and the tax bases that
are consistent with the expected manner of recovery of these

investment properties.

18 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

17 & W¥E (H)

(b) HIEELH

R o R T 2 R S R
U1 45 AL SR R - 1 H SR
A o (LS el B e 1Ly 2 B 40 3 0 S
iR

M-F—HEZH=+—H it
rh g L £91,571,791,0003 76 (—
T4 ) ZREWEH—M
B Jo A W] A o SE B 2 T A
Ml (e B ) IS RE R B A
Z KK HB 3 £8E A) 2% o AL o B
2 1141100,620,000% 76 ( —~ZF—Y
4E 1 #198,348,00045 00 ) Z G
i — M E A R R f - F 2B
A H S WD o A 4 [ A ) B
WEZEREWEZ T —HZ
PR LB R SR EYE
2B W 2 AR R R A A o

18 e T/

Group
A 4 )
2015 2014
SE-RAE ZF P4
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tl Tl
At 1 April B A—H 174 6,367
Additions W - -
Disposal of assets B (174) (95)
Transfer to assets held for sale BN EYE = (4,367)
Reversal of provision e dmEn g = (1,814)
Exchange difference [ 50, 2 = 83
At 31 March B=E=A=Z+—H - 174
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19 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2015.

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities and

ted Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B ARk MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—HILF/&

19 it & 2w
UFRAIR =B HEZA=F—HZ

Bl AR

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities  held by the Group (%)
AR B,/ CRATIRA Rk & A AHH
Hil o i H RN ERES Y3 311 BT < A B A R T (%)
Crown Global Opportunity Samoa Investment holding in Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary shares of *¥100%
Investment Limited US$1 each
SR RE A REARAR i P BTG R 1,000,000/ 5 B Ti i 198 76 2
Hm
Crown International Investment Corp Samoa Investment holding in Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary shares of *100%
US$1 cach
B G TR RN 1,000,000/ 5 e T 156 76 2
Hm
Crown Entertainment Corporation Samoa Investment holding in Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary shares of *100%
US$1 each
SRR R AIA R i FE TR B T M 1,000,000/ 5 I i 158 76 2
T
“U” Inns & Hotels Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 10,000 common shares of 100%
US$1 each (7,410 common shares of
US$1 each and 2,590 Series A preferred
shares of US$1 each)
IR IR AR I P A IR A Sl IR R B TE T W B B 1 M 10,0005 4 Ji T i 158 76 2
BB (74108 T T8 2
W B2, 590N M T £ 156 T2 2
ARFIBESRIE)
“U” Inns & Hotels Investment Hong Kong ~ Investment holding in Hong Kong HKS$1 100%
Limited
I B 5 R I A7 2 ) i TR B R 1T
Yanlian International Petroleum British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
Limited
S B A7 R KRELR TER B T M 15662 ¥ i e
Crown Land Corp Limited Hong Kong Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
BRI EH R & TER R 1 I 10,0009 ¢
Crown International Resort Limited Hong Kong Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
FRIBEEATRA i TR G R 10,0007 78
Crown Commercial (China) PRC  Management and consulting in PRC Registered capital 100%
Limited * of RMB600,000,000
KRR () AR A i TEr G OL S R kA My R AN R 600,000,00078

SR RERE BA FRA R
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Notes to the Congglidate
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#ZHF=H=+—H IL4F B

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19 ME AWl (74)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued Proportion of
establishment and Principal activities and share capital/registered capital ordinary shares
Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities  held by the Group (%)
AR/ CRATIA /R A R A H
41 o i 1 RN FREH RAENE BT b A B R P (%)
“U’Inns (Yingkou) Hotel PRC  Hotel service, hotel management and Registered capital 100%
Management Co., Led. * hotel Investment in PRC of HK$25,650,000
R R (8 1) il 4 5 PR B IR - R AE A 25,650,000% 76
AIRAT WERE
Zhongshan Hualian Industrial PRC Property investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Development Co., Ltd. HK$50,000,000
oLy B T B B IR A i T v S B ¥ Ak 450,000,003 7
* Shares held directly by the Company. * JBA BT A A R H A ©
4 These companies do not have English names. These are only translation of : % S5O ) I 0 3 SO A4 o e A AL TR AR Ry
their Chinese names. For S G Bl o
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the AR R R S A A W A A B S A
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year AR B AN A AR P A TR
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give I Z AN ] B G 8 ] o R Ay A A
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, b B Ja 2 W) E A BB R OT R o

result in particulars of excessive length.

20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20 H] 4t 1B B E A
ASSETS

2015 2014
—“F-hfE DF N
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T# 0 T#T
At 1 April and at 31 March BRUA—HER=Z=A=Z+—H 1,128 1,128
Note: PiF5E -
Available-for-sale financial assets represent unlisted club debentures of golf clubs w G B AR R R R Bk 2k Bl e
which are denominated in RMB. 25 > DA RO R o
The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets is determined by A B B A 2 A PSR AR T
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the WEHEE o 7% A A B 7 1 R AT AT B
use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as 205 R () - Tl A KO
possible on entity specific estimates. The available-for-sale financial B 5 Al wt o T At B I A I
assets are not exposed to credit risk. I 7 52 45 £ L B o
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dated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ao 3 W 5 AR W (7))

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—H ILF/&

21 GOODWILL 21 W&
2015 2014
—FHAE RN
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Filise Filt
At 1 April BHMH—H
Cost B AR 65,240 -
Accumulated impairment loss Bt i s 1R = -
At 31 March W=A=1+—H 65,240 -
The goodwill represents strong position in the Zhongshan property PBR A Y 3T 35 2 S AL - TG
market and relates to the property investment segment. S 36 B o HRAT B o
On 25 March 2015, the Group acquired a subsidiary, which is engaged RoR—HEZHA T HH > RGEER
in property investment in the PRC. Based on the impairment test of i — P v R A e S B S R
goodwill, no impairment against the Group’s goodwill as at 31 March A ) o AR R B A A - Y T —
2015 (2014: Nil) is considered necessary. FEEZH=+—H o REEZ R R

METT A (=% —PUAE - ) o

22 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 22 oAb JE Wk JH ~ T B 3K E K&

AND DEPOSITS i

2015 2014

ZERAE  ZF—NE

HK$’000 HK$’000

T e T#c

Other receivables JHC Al JRE ek TE 618,200 3,534

Prepayments and deposits TH AT RE RS 2,037 7,421

620,237 10,955
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Notes to the Consglidated
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HFE=H =+4—H ILF

22 FLfth Wk JH ~ TR AT K IH K

22 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS

AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 March 2015, other receivable of approximately
HK$62,154,000 (2014: Nil) were impaired. The amount of the
provision was approximately HK$62,154,000 as at 31 March 2015
(2014: Nil).

The balance as of 31 March 2015 mainly represents (i) the receivable
of HK$125,000,000 being the consideration of the entire interests
in a former subsidiary of the Group. The sum was being received in
full in early April 2015; and (ii) that on 31 October 2014, Crown
International Resort Limited (as purchaser, “Crown Resort”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “SP Agreement”) with Sino Oasis
Oversea Limited (as vendor, “Sino Oasis”). Pursuant to the SP
Agreement, Crown Resort agreed to acquire and Sino Oasis agreed
to sell the entire equity interest in ZhongShan HuaLian Industrial
Development Co. Led. H 1L T 32 I 1 3% B 8547 B 23 7 (the “Target
Company”) (the “Acquisition”). On 25 March 2015, the Group
obtained the control over the Target Company through the transfer of
the entire equity interest in the Target Company and the control over
the board of the Target Company. Having considered the above, the
Group paid HK$480,000,000 and HK$120,000,000 to Sino Oasis as
part of the consideration of the Acquisition on 30 March 2015 and
8 April 2015 respectively. However, when the Company subsequently
revisited this matter, it considered that the payment of consideration
deviated from the relevant terms of the SP Agreement and the terms
of the SP Agreement should be followed. As a result, Sino Oasis
returned the entire aforesaid sums to the Group in June 2015. The
Acquisition was also completed in June 2015, and the Group will settle
the remaining consideration in accordance with the terms of the SP

Agreement.
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% (#)

RoF—HAEZH=+—H Kb
Wk T £162,154,000 00 (= F— 1Y
) ERBE R F—HEZAH
ZE+—HZ B S H A 262,154,000%
JC(ZF—4E ) o

Mo —-AEZAZ+ 2 E&EGRE
47 (1)125,000,000 9 7T 2 JE WK IE - 7%
7 A ) — [ PR MBS 2 ) A B ORE AR 2 AR
oA RFFEOH B —HENA W Z
WOk K R R NAE T H = A
H>ZRBEEARANE (FEREI
[ R - AR W] 2 T 3 2 B B 2y
%] ) Bl Sino Oasis Oversea Limited (/£ %
# 7 > [Sino Oasis | ) 7] 32— B 5
W (THEW®R]) - MEBEEW®E F
K H [ 75 W 1M Sino Oasis [l 25 8
IR EEMBEAR AR (THES
Al ) Z 2 ER e (T IR ) - —
FHFE=ZH T 0H  REHERE
R H PR B 2 A B R RE B HBE A ]
Z P RE NG A AR A T e 2 e
B o B B b - A 4 i R
—HEZA=ZTHE SR -TAENAN
H I1 Sino OasisX 11480,000,000% 7t &
120,000,000%% 7G » A7 7 Y5 i % JE = ¥4 4>
A o 2R > B ARA W) AR TR ERA
o 516 o LR SRR — R e
Tk e 2 AH B AR K > SR R MRS B W
i Z K o B BE > Sino Oasisit Z&F — 1
SR8 H T A 45 ) A OB R bR S8 A - WL
[ I S R Sl TR SV S 70 A 1]
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dated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—H ILF/&

22 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 22 o fth Wk O ~ A K OE K
AND DEPOSITS (Continued) i ()
The carrying amounts of other receivables and deposits approximate 7 55 [ 2 Al JRE WAk T M i 4 22 MR T AL
their fair values and are denominated in the following currencies: BLAPAEHA > DA A £ W R
2015 2014
R FAE RN
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt FHsoT
Hong Kong dollars Wt 480,917 562
Renminbi NS 139,320 10,393
620,237 10,955
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 BEkBRE&EFHY
2015 2014
R -hH ZER—4g
HK$’°000 HK$’000
TR FH#oT
Bank balances and cash on hand ATH R X FHBE 34,630 41,277
34,630 41,277
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate Bl 4 B B4 A A 2 W% i B A E R
their fair values and are denominated in the following currencies: #Ho L TH & EHE
2015 2014
R HAE ZF N
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T T F#oT
Hong Kong dollars Wt 28,475 5,476
Renminbi NS 5,678 21,329
United States dollars En 477 14,453
Other currencies Hofh £ W - 19
34,630 41,277
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Notes to the Consglidated
AWM B mENE (H)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HFE=H =+4—H ILF

24 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24 LAl JE F 3 JE B E st £
2015 2014
—FhE RN
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
il Tt
Non-current FEEp
Consideration payable — non-current portion JRE A AR — Ik B 38 4 582,991 -
Other payables A Ak T 180,357 -
| TR
Current IR
Property acquisition cost payable JRE A 3 WL I Bl AR 1,106 1,640
Accrued expenses in respect of acquisitions of WO 1 i ) 3 2 HE i
hotel properties - 6,547
Commission payable in respect of disposals of H B T A S A A
hotel properties 5,492 -
Consideration payable — current portion JRE A A — B S 8 43 12,200 -
Deposits received for disposal of equity interest Wi H 5 A Ja 2 ) e e 2
in subsidiaries o 7,480 45,700
Other payables A A R I 9,980 15,262
| o 69,149 _
799,606 69,149
(a) The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals (a)  HoAl A 30E B RE 5T £ AR 2 AR T E
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the BLAFEARA - DUF 8 WS

following currencies:

2015 2014

ZE R ee Sl UV E- 2

HK$’000 HK$’000

F# T-H#I0

Hong Kong dollars oo 617,775 2,616
Renminbi AR ¥ 181,831 58,765
United States dollars FIT = 7,768
799,606 69,149
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25 BORROWING

ed Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #¢E —F—HAE=H =—4—H ILFJF

25 ik

2015 2014
—FHAE RN
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Ti#n THT
Loan from VXLCPL VXLCPLZ £k - 407,429
Note payable (Note a) JE AT 2248 (B iika) 500,753 -
500,753 407,429
Note a: The note payable with an aggregated principle amount of Miaka: HEMN 2B 2 K& B HR

HK$500,000,000, bears interest at 2.5% per annum with 1-year
maturity period repayable on 10 March 2016. Subsequent to the

balance sheet date on 22 April 2015, the Company and the note

holder agreed to extend the maturity date to 10 March 2018.

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group’s borrowing was repayable

within one year.

The effective annual interest rates at the end of the reporting period

were as follows:

500,000,000% JC > #& 45 F) 32 5 8
BB B4 R R NES
A H B R - R H A% - AR
O w] BRI AR 2 — A
MH =+ B @2 A g
F2oR—)HE=ZH+TH-

PR -RAER R NE=H =4
H s ACHR B 2 i ko — 47 79 2090 18

TP 3 R 2 T B AR A R

2015 2014

TR RE SR UE
Loan from VXLCPL VXLCPLZ &K = 10%
Note payable JE A 52 4% 2.5% -

The carrying amount of the borrowing approximate their fair value and

is denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

ik 2 M i {5223 P A - DA ST

rﬁo

SR RERE BA FRA R
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Notes to the Consglidated Fi
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HFE=H =+4—H ILF

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 26 EHERIEE E R AE

LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to

settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are as follows:

A A AT AT R A T st B B O
S B 300 8 T A R IR A - TR S A5
ot B A SR — RO L A I
JRE TR e 2 ] — T A4 B P el =2 i
FBUA B > ELA R i B 4 0
IR - BT 28 A BT 4980 A B AR LA

S - HRBH AW T -
2015 2014
ZE R E N
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T o0
Deferred income tax assets 9 4E BT 45 B A 2 2
Deferred income tax liabilities 5 2 T 15 Bl A A (331,166) (13,116)
(331,164) (13,114)

The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised

in the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

BEZF-NWE=ZHA=Z+H—HIREE
Ao T B R DL 3 O e 2 0 A O A B

during the year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows: 7 (BAR) Bty RO BT -
Fair value
Accelerated change of
depreciation investment
allowances Tax losses properties Total
o B"EWE
ERME  BEEBR ATHES sk
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fie TR T T
At 1 April 2014 B —UEMNA—H (2) 2 (13,114) (13,114)
Charged to the bR BE A
consolidated statement of gl EnE s
comprehensive income - - (536) (536)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wee % — ] BF D 2 ) - = (317,510) (317,510)
Exchange difference [ 5t 7% 7 = - (4) 4
At 31 March 2015 RoF-RE=H=+—H 2 2 (331,164)  (331,164)
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dated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—H ILF/&

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 26 JE%E Bi JH B A & IR
LIABILITIES (Continued) (#)
The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised BE_FZ-NE=ZH=+—HILEE:
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements f o B IR L 2 P e i 2 R A P A B
during the year ended 31 March 2014 are as follows: 2 (AAR) Bty R BT -
Fair value
Accelerated change of
depreciation investment
allowances Tax losses  properties Total
3 wEWE
A BEHEBEER APHEED A

HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000
T#T T#T T#T T

At 1 April 2013 R_F =4 H—H (2) 2 (19,803) (19,803)
Reclassified to liabilities EH M EFFEEAE
held for sale - - 7,072 7,072
Exchange difference [ 56, % %A - - (383) (383)
At 31 March 2014 BB -NWE=ZH=+—H () 2 (13,114) (13,114)
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are as follows: RERZ BB BEENT
2015 2014
SR RE SR NUE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T o0
Unutilized tax losses A B 2 BlIE EHE 53,549 71,092
Accelerated depreciation allowances Jin 2 BT 8 3 A 27 365
53,576 71,457
As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, all deferred tax assets and deferred tax R-B—HE{R R —NE=H=1—
liabilities are to be recovered after more than 12 months. H - JT G % 2B B JE % e I 3 4E B 0E & fi

AT A+ A AR W ] o
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Notes to the Congglidate
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#HHF=H=—+—H IL4F

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 26 EHERIEE E R AE

LIABILITIES (Continued)

At 31 March 2015, the deferred tax assets on the Group’s and
the Company’s unutilized tax losses of approximately HK$277.5
million and HK$138.1 million (31 March 2014: HK$359.3 million
and HK$21.4 million) respectively, which can be carried forward
against future taxable income, have not been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the Group’s tax
losses, HK$170.0 million (31 March 2014: HK$220.4 million) has
no expiry date and HK$101.0 million (31 March 2014: HK$138.7
million) expire within five years under the current tax legislation of the
respective jurisdictions. The Company’s unutilized tax losses have no

expiry date under the current tax legislation.

(%)

N oR-HEZEA=Z+—H o REER
A2 Vi) e VT A DL IR B H A% E R ML
AZ A B ABLIE S 4 51 £277,500,000
Wt 5 138,100,000% 70 ( =& — Py 4¢
ZHA=Z+—H:359,300,000% 5t &
21,400,000% 7T ) - H & H 4% i A 2% I
AN YT > G AR T R A A I
8 4% W) 3 E [ 2 BUAT RS R 1] > A2 AR
45 18 B IE S 18 R - 170,000,000 78 (=
Z—WHE=ZH=+—H :220,400,000
o) WM JE B H M- 101,000,000
WE(ZF—NME=H=+—H:
138,700,000% 7G ) A 7 T4 9 2 ] - 42
BEAT BB > AN v Z KRB HBIE

K& 48 3 46 e i 3 o
27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 AR
Number of

shares Share capital
J& 4 ¥ H JiE AR
HK$’000
T

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: CBEAT B4R a8 Bt
At 1 April 2014 PR AN —H 1,529,600,000 167,345
Proceeds from shares issued (Note a) BT B i 453008 (P sEa) 630,400,000 337,657
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note b) W B — D O B 2 WD (B RED ) 440,000,000 466,400
At 31 March 2015 W _R-LFE=ZHA=1—H 2,600,000,000 971,402
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27 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note a:

On 2 July 2014, the Company issued and allotted 300,000,000 new shares at
HK$0.36 each to a placee pursuant to a placing agreement entered into between
the Company and an independent placing agent dated 19 June 2014. These new
shares were issued under the general mandate granted to the Directors pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 4 September 2013. The new shares rank equally among themselves and
with the existing shares in all respects. The net proceeds of the placing were
approximately HK$107,376,000 and were for general working capital of the
Group.

On 29 October 2014, the Company issued and allotted 330,399,800 new
shares at HK$0.70 ecach to not less than six independent placees pursuant to
a placing agreement entered into between the Company and an independent
placing agent dated 21 October 2014. These new shares were issued under the
general mandate granted to the Directors pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 17 September
2014. The new shares rank equally among themselves and with the existing
shares in all respects. The net proceeds of the placing were approximately

HK$230,281,000 and were for general working capital of the Group.

Note b:

On 24 February 2015, the Company issued and allotted 440,000,000
consideration shares at HK$0.70 each (“Consideration Shares”) to three
separate parties under the discretion of Sino Oasis Oversea Limited (“Sino
Oasis”) pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement dated 31 October 2014
entered into between Crown International Resort Limited (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) (“Crown International Resort”) and Sino
Qasis, in which Sino Oasis agreed to sell and Crown International Resort agreed
to purchase the entire issued share capital of Zhongshan Hualian Industrial
Development Co., Ltd at a total consideration of HK$1,008,000,000, of
which HK$700,000,000 was satisfied by cash payment and the remaining
HK$308,000,000 by issue and allotment of the Consideration Shares.

Under the discretion of Sino Oasis, a total numbers of 440,000,000 shares in
proportion of 154,000,000, 154,000,000 and 132,000,000 shares were being
issued to Advance Bonus Limited, Luckwell Limited and Best Plus Ventures
Limited respectively. The Consideration Shares were issued under the specific
mandate granted to the Directors pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the special general meeting of the Company held on 23 February 2015. The
Consideration Shares rank equally among themselves and with the existing
shares in all respects. The fair value of the 440,000,000 consideration shares
issued as part of the consideration paid (HK$466,400,000) was based on the
published share price on 24 February 2015.

dated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #% £ —F—H#F=H="1—H ILF &

27 AR (#)

W o -

WAL H AN R B —4
WS AR BT S B s R AE R
H B Z 8 Wk » A2 7 3% 50,367
JC I — 44 A L N B 4T K B #£300,000,000/8
T EAR o 5% ST e A T ML 98 T AR IR %
—ZAEJUH Y H BT 2 AR A ] RO AE R
LM RR R T ERFZ R
BEAT o Wi AR 45 B Z M K BUE By 72 %y
T 34 T[] 25 Hb A o TG B O 5k S R R A
107,376,00095 76 > T\ AR A 4 1) 2 — Jt 48
B4 o

W R —AE A T JLE o ARA RS A
O] B — 2 M or LS AR B RTRT oL B R
F—WETHZ+—HZEE RS RER
0.70% I [ A A 1A 7 44 8 31 AR L N B8 47 2 i
#$330,399,800BE W7 LB o 3% 55 1 B4y T3 4%
WRRBR ZF—ESH L HBITZAR
AR B HREAE R & R 2 R R T
W Z AT o W R A A Z T S B
BUA B A 4% 7 T 3 B2 AT ) 25 i Aor o T 5
5 3K VE A A0 #5230,281,00088 70 > B HAEAR
Mz REEES-

B RED

Mo —HETAHZUH > BB R
B A B A R (A 2\ Z [ 8 2 W A A
(MZRH#]) Bl Sino Oasis Oversea Limited
('Sino Oasis |) Fr sl iz H i 5 —F — Y 4E
THEZ+—HZHEE W A2 6K Sino
OasisZ M5 RE #2550 70 T 1 = & W r A
847 S E #$ 440,000,000 1 A% 18 B 4y (T4
e 1) 5 M3 b2k B 5 43 3% > Sino OasislA]
T B T B R [ AR N R o oL R
B B B ) 2 2 LB AT LA » SR 2y
1,008,000,000% JG > 3£ #1700,000,000% 7B DA
B4 AT > H5308,000,0008 7T 75 18 34T I
e 3 AR AL B S A o

M3 Sino OasisZ I 1% #E » A& 4£440,000,000
T JBE 4y 442154,000,000 )8 ~ 154,000,000 8 &
132,000,000/ Z kb i 43 il 8 47 T Advance
Bonus Limited » Luckwell Limited % Best Plus
Ventures Limited © 1QAH B4 75 MR 48 o 4K 3%
W oF—HEZH = HBIFZARAFE R
WA KRG R S BRRRRTERFZ
i RMERAT - BRI & B Z T R BB
TR A 45 5 T ¥ B2 T A o AR A TR
8 (466,400,000 7€) — B 4> Z 440,000,000
BB R 2 A FHEGIER -F 1
AETH MY H A Z B
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Notes to the Congglidéte '
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HFE=H =+4—H ILF

28 RESERVES 28 fii ffi
Share Capital Exchange  Revaluation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
JBe O i 152 N HE 52 5k Efhff RiHE# Y
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS§000
T T T T T T
At 1 April 2013 REF-ZFNH—H 152,049 51,671 37,646 14,074 (353,968) (98,528)
Translation exchange difference e BRE 3£ - - 2,083 - - 2,083
Realisation of exchange gain upon S5 Rk A1 A
disposal and deregistration of WY J 2 ) 2 W S8 R
foreign subsidiaries - - (5,110) - - (5,110)
Loss for the year L) - - - - (45,288) (45,288)
Transition to no-par regime REF-NEZHZH
on 3 March 2014 8 082 0 (152,049) - - - - (152,049)
At 31 March 2014 REZF—WEZN
=t—H - 51,671 34,619 14,074 (399,256) (298,892)
Translation exchange difference 05T E 5 2% = = (2,622) = - (2,622)
Realisation of exchange gain upon S5 KRBT
disposal and deregistration of W J 2 W) 2 W 58 6
foreign subsidiaries - - (32,124) - - (32,124)
Transfer Of revaluation surplus upon A H 8 Vg A F J&§ 2 ] I
disposal of a foreign subsidiary R A R AR - - - (6,968) 6,968 =
Profit for the year AR 4 i A1 = = = = 155,067 155,067
Acquisition of non-controlling W T e A 5
interest - (43,756) 12,103 4,919 - (26,734)
At31 March 2015 REZZ—-HEZR
=t—H - 7,915 11,976 12,025 (237,221) (205,305)
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29 COMMITMENTS

(a) Lease commitments

ed Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—H ILF/&

29 7K
(a) HEAWE
() AR ERNE—RLEE Y

(i) Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the

lessor

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following minimum lease receivables:

HHNA

/I S T 2/ G Sl LK S
ZHZE4—H o AREE A
1A AT B AR B M WG

2015 2014
OG- S 1 S g 111 K2 S
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Filisi Tt
Not later than 1 year I — 4R 3,636 3,590
Later than 1 year and not later than — 4R DL B AR B E 1A
5 years 15,301 14,360
Over five years I AR 6,996 6,134
25,933 24,084
Operating lease receivables represent future aggregate 2% LB B WO AR R A 4R
minimum lease receipts by the Group from non-cancellable P A L 3 B S 2 AN AT
operating leases of its investment properties. Typically, leases B A% 7 LB WO 2 L 4 AR 2R
are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term of eight to AR A AE o — B = o AL
ten years. B Jy ST - T\ AR ALY
VR L 4 A DD A Y

(ii)  Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the

lessee

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group had commitments

under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented

premises, which fall due as follows:

(i)

AR AR — A5 (F 7%
RN

/A Sl TC ) G S 11 K4
ZA=Z+—H  REEMER
EE & ES iV v E Vs

WIS A Z A5 Sk 2 R A
T:
2015 2014
“F-hE ZFNE
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#n THT
Not later than 1 year A — AR 7,987 1,544
Later than 1 year and not later than —4F D) FAHOR 0 AR
5 years 3,652 391
11,639 1,935

SR RERE BA FRA R
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Notes to the Consglidated
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HFE=H =+4—H ILF

29 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 29 7 (4)
(b) Capital commitments (b) & A ¥
As at 31 March 2015, the Group has outstanding commitment RoF-HFEZH=Z4—H K%
amounted to approximately HK$0.6 million (2014: HK$0.8 [ 2 R B AT A 49 45600,0003 J6
million). (Z=F— Y4 : 800,000%78) °
30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 B Wi U5 52 %)
The following transactions were carried out with related parties during A P BT W 7 HEAT 2 BN INE o
the year.
(a) Interest expense (a) F B BH %2
2015 2014
g “FNEg
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T# 7t T#T
Amount due to VXLCPL JE A VXLCPL#K - 44,700
Notes payable (Note i) REAT ZE 55 (B 5ED) 1,200 -
1,200 44,700
Note i Bi ki
On 19 June 2014, the Company issued promissory notes in the aggregate RO MEANHTIUH - RN
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 to an investor. The investor 4% B AT AR 4 481 %5 120,000,000
was later become a substantial shareholder of the Company through WL Z R o R E H HARE M
subscription of new shares in the Company. On 4 September 2014, R A W) 2 SR B AR A ] 2
the investor agreed to sell and Crown Landmark Corporation, the R R F ARSI H - Zk
controlling shareholder of the Company agreed to buy the promissory o ) 7 L R A R
notes at a consideration of HK$120,900,000. On 21 November 2014, A (AR ] 2 45 e e ) T 78 S L R B
the Company early redeemed the promissory notes and fully repaid the SRR - R %5120,900,0009 7€ © i %
principal amount and the HK$1,200,000 accrued interest. =W S B AR AR L

5] 7R 5 S o Sl 2 S AR A T R T
F1)8.1,200,000% It ©
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ed Financial Statements (Continued)

Ao 3 W 5 AR W (7))

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—H ILF/&

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 B i3 2 5 (#)
(Continued)
(b) Key management compensation (b) F PG M &
2015 2014
ZRfE RN
HK$’000 HKS$’000
it Tl
Directors’ fee A 1,667 -
Salaries and other short-term employee Wt 4 B At e 0 R B
benefits 524 2,729
Pension costs — MPF TR 4 AR — i ) A B 3 15
2,194 2,744
(c) Advances (c) B
A wholly owned company beneficially held by Ms. Hung —[H e (AR R Z ¥ B i
Man, the controlling sharcholder of the Company made to the W) B FEH Z 2K A AR A F
Company two advances in the amount of HK$10,000,000 and A H 2 G B S B A
HK$20,000,000 respectively which are unsecured and interest 43 3110,000,000% 7€ $220,000,000
free. Those advances were subsequently being repaid in full in WIC o FRGK R T HIR %
July 2014 and October 2014 respectively. Later in the financial —V4AELH Kk ZF—WE+HE
year, on 4 March 2015, another wholly owned company WRR o HAR - RARM AR EEZ
beneficially held by Ms. Hung Man also advanced an amount of FHEZHWMH - 55— g
HKS$5,000,000 to the Group which is unsecured and interest free. LTHERFTAEZZE AT MAE
Such advance was also being repaid in full on 18 March 2015. P — 2 SRR A % S B B > Ty

#5,000,000% 70 © 3% EHK TR 2
B—HFE=H+H/)\HBEHER-
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Notes to the Consglidated
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % —F—HFE=H =+4—H ILF

31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

31 HEWE A F

The Group entered into several disposal agreements to dispose (a

100% equity interest of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries. The

Group’s share of net assets of these subsidiaries disposed at the

)

ASE T L e ek > DA
H T 2 M E A W 221009 B HE o
NS U Tl A S

date of disposal is as follows: HEHYZEEFMHNT :
HKS$’000
T#T
Nets assets disposed of: Pt B O
Property, plant and equipment W3 B Bk 165,524
Land use right e 4 25,077
Investment property Ed LyES 32,295
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE WLk T ~ TR R I B 2 4 65,711
Construction in progress FEg TR 3,825
Bank balances and cash AT KR KBl 11,658
Payables and accruals JRE A 3k T % M it £ A% (108,385)
Deferred income tax liabilities A HIE FIT A5 Bl £ (7,315)
Total net assets A 188,390
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: H A — ] R A ) 2 LA
Consideration received and receivable I & HE W AR 257,788
Nert assets disposed of Pt H 5 5 (188,390)
Professional costs for the disposal of interests  H} B % B B 2 7] E 7t 2 2 3 Bl AR
in subsidiaries (3,874)
Gain on disposal before taxation B Z BB LA 65,524
Less: taxation 8 : BLIE (2,467)
Gain on disposal after taxation B Z Br B LA 63,057
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEZ B ARG :
Consideration received during the year FEN B 38,182
Professional costs associated with disposal of i Hi 5 ff 25 1 B 2 B 38 gl AR
interest (3,874)
Taxation paid e B (2,467)
Bank balances and cash SRAT A R R B4 (11,658)
20,183
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31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

ed Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # £~ F—HFE=H=—1—H ILF/&

31 B & 2\l (%)

“U” Inns & Hotels Investment Limited (% B % B2 )% A R (b) WHERWEEFRAR ([REE

2 d]) (“UHILY), a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
asset swap agreement to acquire 25.9% equity interest in U Inns
& Hotels Holdings Limited. The Group’s share of net assets of
“U” Inns & Hotel (Xi'an) Hotel Management Co., Limited (&
W% R (V6 %) 9 % 45 BEA B A B ) disposed at the date of

disposal are as follows:

1) (RAEZMEAR )T L&
JE HL 451t o DL WBCI R ) R T O
PR PR A W) 225.9% B HE - A 4R
[ 43 A BTt B Z AR P AR (15 %)
WIEFHARARRHEINZ
B FEW T

HK$’000
THsoT

Nets assets disposed of: Pt H B 3
Property, plant and equipment ERN: & 75,322
Land use right + Hb £ ] RE 25,931
Construction in progress e TR 456
Bank balances and cash ATH B R Bl 4 733
Payables and accruals JRE A 3 JE T ME R £ (2,589)
Total net assets TE A 99,853
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary H A — ] R g 2 W) 2
Non-cash consideration received B E] A 118,315
Net assets disposed of P A (99,853)
Professional costs for the disposal of interest ~ H H B 25 M B 2 B AR (210)
Gain on disposal before taxation B 22 BB w2 A 18,252
Less: taxation 9 BiIE (606)
Gain on disposal after taxation H 8 2 BB 2 A 17,646
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEZ B A5 EH:
Professional costs associated with disposal of 5 H 85 74 B} J& 23 =] BE 45 HH B 2 2 3 AR

interests in subsidiaries (210)
Taxation paid e B (606)
Bank balances and cash disposed of Fir B SR AT A iR Bl & (733)

(1,549)

SR RERE BA FRA R
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#HHF=H=—+—H IL4F

Notes to the Consolidate

32 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 31 October 2014, Crown Resort entered into the SP Agreement
with Sino Oasis. Pursuant to the SP Agreement, Crown Resort agreed
to acquire and Sino Oasis agreed to sell the entire equity interest
in the Target Company. The Acquisition was completed in June
2015. However, since Crown Resort obtained the control over the
Target Company through the transfer of the entire equity interest
of the Target Company and the control over the board of the Target
Company, the Group has consolidated the Target Company since 25

March 2015. The details of the Acquisition are summarised as follows:

The following table summarises the consideration paid or payable
and the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the

acquisition date.

32 W Vi — ] B I8 2 W)
BEF-NETA = —H - ERME
Sino Oasisa] 3. H B b # o AL 458 H & b
i > TR Hh R 7 WO 1M Sino Oasis [l 2 H
B HBR A W] Z A B o W g R
FTAFEN A S8R o AR - 8 R H
R H R A 2 AT R R A H
B W) 2 e i RS IS H B A W R
TR AREA R HEEA
T HGE A H B A R AR AR o WO
FHIEGFEHEBIIMT

A O A B R A AR DA B P Wi
7 B 7R A AR O ) 2 2 P

HK$’000

FHT

Consideration paid by cash VA B4 A 2 AR 75,600
Cash consideration payable JE A B 4 AR 595,191
Equity instruments (440,000,000 shares) A T H (440,000,000/8 B4 ) 466,400
Total consideration AR 1,137,191

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities assumed

e W Bl ko) 7 B P 4 Tk
ARz B2

HKS$’000

T#C

Cash and cash equivalents Bl MBS H 1,167
Property, plant and equipment EN N & 55
Investment properties BEWIR 1,571,791
Prepayment and other receivables T A K T B At R Wk T 1,107
Other payables and accruals O At JRE A Ak I B B it 1 £ (184,659)
Deferred tax liabilities 8 S A TE AR (317,510)
Total identifiable net assets A i AR 1,071,951
Goodwill ik 65,240
1,137,191
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32 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed (Continued)

In the consolidated cash flow statement, the consideration paid for

acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired was comprised of:

lated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #% £ —F—H#F=H="1—H ILF &

32 Wk — I BB 2 ) (4)

o W B ]k ) B B P R 4f Tk
Az B 8 ()

W B A B A R AR b o W — T B
AT Z O (BT WU B 4 ) i
E

HKS$’000

T

Cash and cash equivalents acquired JI WA B B 4 B B AW 1,167
Consideration paid by cash VLB 4 XA 2 AR (75,600)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired WSt i — ] R e A T (B T W B B 4 ) (74,433)

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$1,736,000 have been
charged to other operating expenses in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2015.

The revenue and profit included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income since 25 March 2015 contributed by

Zhongshan Hualian Industrial Development Co., Ltd was nil.

Had Zhongshan Hualian Industrial Development Co., Ltd been
consolidated from 1 April 2014, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income would show pro-forma revenue of
approximately HK$3,632,000 and a profit of approximately
HK$154,374,000.

33 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 22 April 2015, the Company and the Investor entered into a
supplemental deed pursuant to which the Company and the Investor
agreed to extend the maturity date of the Promissory Notes in the
principal amount of HK$500,000,000 from 10 March 2016 to 10
March 2018.

Wit 5 A B AR £401,736,0009 0 B B 2
R -HFEZAZ T HIREESEA S
T YA 25 7% N 2 Al 48 48 BR S B B o

HoF-HAEZHAZ+HHHUK &8
2] WA A PP L R N S B %
A R T 2 W sk B i A 2 & o

b I IR AR AR B F
— P H— H A G AR Hlisa 2
THI W25 3Rt S A5 5 2 Wi % i R 43 ) 4
3,632,000 70 X #1154,374,000% JC ©

33 i HIfE FIE

MF—HAENMA Z+ZH ARAF
B 5B A T L — A hl R s S
AKAFR R GREFRENREFR
500,000,000% 0 Z A& E B Z BIHI H
Ho-R—AEEHTHERERE )\
EEZHA1He
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Notes to the Congglidate
AWM B mENEE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # E = F —#ZHF=H=+—H IL4F B

34 ARTFIZEEAMER

34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY ol i 52 )
As at 31 March
WR=A=Z+—H
2015 2014
“E2HE ZENF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt T 0 T#o0
ASSETS & E
Non-current assets I B
Property, plant and equipment VEN &L 4 -
Investments in subsidiaries T B A T 2 R I _1§,_592 ______ 3_3_0:0_0_0_ B
15,513 330,000
Current assets i B E
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE WL AR I~ FEA R B 2 4 480,145 200
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE W F Jeg A ] 3k 0E 613,558 38,102
Cash and cash equivalents B4e KB4 12,561 256
_LI0G26E 355
Current liabilities i Bh £ £
Payables and accruals JE A 3k Ve % T AL A 1,504 1,626
Borrowings & 7 500,753 407,429
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE 45} B} JB§ 2 ) R TE 162,875 114,853
s 523,908
Net current assets/(liabilities) mEE R, (A FH | _41i1,_1§% . £4_8_513_5_02 -
Total assets less current liabilities HEE R B B AR | _4§§,_6:i§ _ £1_5_513_5_02 -
Net assets/(liabilities) ' (Al S 456,645 (155,350)
EQUITY BE 23
Capital and reserves Jie A% K fii A
Share capital JBe A% 971,402 167,345
Accumulated losses HEltERE (a) (514,757) (322,695)
Total equity HE %3 487 456,645 (155,350)

ARAFRZHEEAMRKEEFTR R
—HAEANA =+ HAHE - Sl AL
REERGTHE:

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 30 June 2015 and was signed on its behalf

Mr. MENG Jin Long Mr. LIU Hong Shen

WA TR Bl e E
Chairman Director
FH HH

130 Crown International Corporation Limited Annual Report 2014/2015



»d Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B ARk MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #¢ £ —F—HAE=H =—4—H ILFJF

34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 34 KAvZEEABERER
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY s g (44)
(Continued)

(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) A2 W] 2 fifi i 5 )

Accumulated

losses

2l

HKS$’000

T-#o0

At 1 April 2013 BRoR-=FNA—H (254,303)
Loss for the year ENGE (68,392)
At 31 March 2014 R-F—WE=H=+—H (322,695)
At 1 April 2014 BB -NUENHA—H (322,695)
Loss for the year N E R (192,062)
At 31 March 2015 W_E—-HE=ZH=+—H (514,757)

EEBREREEARA T 2014/2015 #1311



Financial Summary

S 25 ik 22

The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the

last five financial periods.

A5 7 S5 20 A A B0 ] 2 A SR A A A
mE e

1/412010 0 1/4/2011t0  1/41201200  1/4/2013 0 1/4/2014 to
31/3/2011 31/3/2012 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2015

14120108 142011F  1/42012F 142013 1/4/2014%

31/3/2011 31/3/2012 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2015

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000

T#T T#T AR T T

Turnover BEH 4,401 6,436 6,627 5,981 3,632
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBLRT (1R /WA (66,414) (52,073) (67,355) (39,459) 161,209
Taxation charge BLIE S 3) (345) (5,172) (1,292) (6,415)
(Loss)/profit for the year N (BHR) /A (66,417) (52,418) (72,527) (40,751) 154,794

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group as

at 31 March 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015.

AEEP R DR DR

CEECZEFCNERZF-REZN
=t HZEE KA FARRAR T -

31/3/2011 31/3/2012 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2015

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$’000

T T F#0 T 0 Tt

Total assets e 631,503 610,045 581,425 501,198 2,400,427

Total liabilities A fE R (535,100) (540,152) (576,282) (540,891) (1,634,330)
Total equity/(deficit) WEZE (4t

A 96,403 69,893 5,143 (39,693) 766,097
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